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2025
2,999,618.02 62.14
441,414.27 9.14
806,854.58 16.72
4,247,886.87 88.00
579,107.41 12.00
4,826,994.28 100.00
688
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30
2025

Tencent Holdings 7,700 3,041,926| 395.06| 3,674,440| 477.20

Ltd

Meituan 13,880 2,278,314| 164.14| 1,808,564| 130.30

Xiaomi Corp 35,600 680,035 19.101 1,778,220 49.95

Taiwan 8,000 4,544,265 568.03| 7,264,000] 908.00

Semiconductor

Manufacturing Co

Ltd

China Mobile Ltd 21,500 974,826 45.34| 1,742,575 81.05

Alibaba Group 13,200 1,341,224] 101.61| 1,551,000 117.50

Holding Ltd

China 213,000 1,142,046 5.36] 1,358,940 6.38

Construction Bank

Corp

Kweichow Moutai 800 1,321,305|1,651.63| 1,237,602|1,547.00

Co Ltd

Ping An Insurance 22,000 1,303,221 59.24| 1,025,200 46.60

Group Co of China

Ltd
10 |NetEase Inc 5,200 841,098 161.75 868,400 167.00

Tripod Technology 19,000 3,824,832 201.31| 3,486,500| 183.50
11 |Corp

Hong Kong 2,300 315,288 137.08 783,840 340.80
12 |Exchanges &

Clearing Ltd

Zijin Mining 46,000 791,596 17.21 781,080 16.98
13

Group Co Ltd

China Railway 209,000 973,953 4.66 698,060 3.34
14

Group Ltd

Quanta Computer 12,000 3,150,633| 262.55| 2,862,000 238.50
15 |Inc
16 ANTA Sports 7,400 1,046,158 141.37 680,430 91.95

Products Ltd
17 MediaTek Inc 2,000 2,479,029(1,239.51| 2,700,000|1,350.00

Contemporary 2,600 672,163 258.52 601,900 231.50
18 |Amperex

Technology Co Ltd

Industrial & 111,000 557,054 5.02 590,520 5.32
19 [Commercial Bank

of China Ltd

Wuliangye Yibin 4,200 591,604| 140.86 540,540 128.70
20

Co Ltd
21 |AIA Group Ltd 9,800 922,493 94.13 569,380 58.10

Gigabyte 10,000 2,451,875 245.19| 2,285,000] 228.50
22 |Technology Co Ltd
2 China 290,000 566,303 1.95 548,100 1.89

BlueChemical Ltd

Inner Mongolia 16,400 505,450 30.82 488,064 29.76
24 |Yili Industrial

Group Co Ltd
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Beijing Tong Ren 61,000 942,568 15.45 514,230 8.43 1.4
25 Tang Chinese
Medicine Co Ltd
26 Nissin Foods Co 75,000 360,754 4.81 501,000 6.68 1.3
Ltd
27 Yum China 1,250 435,266 348.21 453,250 362.60 1.2
Holdings Inc
28 China Merchants 10,500 400,843 38.18 445,725 42.45 1.2
Bank Co Ltd
China Telecom 78,000 368,714 4.73 416,520 5.34 1.1
29
Corp Ltd
30 Acter Group Corp 4,000 1,694,717 423.68| 1,606,000 401.50 1.0
Ltd
2025
21
18
14
8
6
5
5
4
3
2
2
12
100

2025

2025

SFC
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2025
14
8,249 1,176 543.11 77,431
2015 12 31
15
6,626 945 517.37 73,761
2016 12 31
16
8,578 1,223 709.45 101,146
2017 12 31
17
6,129 874 526.56 75,072
2018 12 31
18
7,636 1,089 676.31 96,422
2019 12 31
19
9,596 1,368 858.46 122,391
2020 12 31
20
8,347 1,190 767.95 109,487
2021 12 31
21
5,898 841 563.04 80,273
2022 12 31
22
4,702 670 489.23 69,750
2023 12 31
23
4,838 690 520.52 74,211
2024 12 31
2024 4,785 682 509.90 72,696
4,748 677 507.24 72,317
4,536 647 484 .56 69,084
4,551 649 486.71 69,390
5,185 739 554.51 79,056
10 4,905 699 527.58 75,217
11 4,708 671 506.52 72,215
12 4,838 690 520.52 74,211
2025 4,845 691 521.25 74,315
5,111 729 553.13 78,860
5,009 714 542.07 77,283
4,827 688 525.76 74,958
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14
2.15
2015 2015 12 31
15
4.74
2016 2016 12 31
16
37.13
2017 2017 12 31
17
25.78
2018 2018 12 31
18
28.44
2019 2019 12 31
19
26.93
2020 2020 12 31
20
10.54
2021 2021 12 31
21
26.68
2022 2022 12 31
22
13.11
2023 2023 12 31
23
6.40
2024 2024 12 31
100 x
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| EREROME (FEN—2)

(ENRER %) =100 x{a — b)

%)
50
40
30
20

10
a
<10
-20
-30
=40
50

(20151818~ 2024%%H)

-2.15

Ll

=474

3713

28.44

-28.78

26.93

et B

.._-_ i e -...___._

540

-10.54 1311
2668

2005 2018E 20178 2018 2018F 2020F 2021F 20228 2022F 2024%F

o

a = HEAERERTED 08 D RS
b = SRRKOERCEHD O3 HAREE

14 293 1,618 15,189
2015 2015 12 31 293 1,618 15,189
15 0 2,382 12,807
2016 2016 12 31 0 2,382 12,807
16 115 831 12,001
2017 2017 12 31 115 831 12,001
17 223 675 11,639
2018 2018 12 31 223 675 11,639
18 160 519 11,280
2019 2019 12 31 160 519 11,280
19 0 102 11,178
2020 2020 12 31 0 102 11,178
20 0 309 10,869
2021 2021 12 31 0 309 10,869
21 0 393 10,476
2022 2022 12 31 0 393 10,476
22 10 875 9,611
2023 2023 12 31 10 875 9,611
23 0 316 9,295
2024 2024 12 31 ©) (316) (9,295)
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US GAAP

328

KPMG LLP

2025 30
142.57
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2024 12 31
JA-VP
2024 12 31
2024

5,107,711 5(d), 8 4,637,126 661,115,054

2,574 366,975

5(d) 248,548 35,435,488
———— 4,888,248 696,917,517

5(a) 6,556 934,689

5(c) 4,505 642,278

39,622 5,648,909

50,683 7,225,875

4,837,565 689,691,642

6 9,295
9 520.45 74,201
2025 30

30 31 35
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JA-VP
2024 12 31

2024

13,524 141,844 20,222,699

5(d) 1,715 244,508

49 6,986

________ 143,008 20,474,198

5(a) (74,974) (10,689,043)

5(c) (53,855) (7,678,107)

5(d) (7,871) (1,122,168)

5(d) (46,302) (6,601,276)

(29,314) (4,179,297)

5(d) (956) (136,297)

(1,973) (281,291)

(307) (43,769)

(14,400) (2,053,008)

_______ (229,952) ____(32.784,257)

________ (86,349 .. (12.310,089)

(155,714) (22,200,145)

536,662 76,511,901

(4,225) (602,358)

________ 376,723 53.709,3%

290,379 41,399,334

31 35
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2024 12 31
2024
(155,714) (22,200,145)
536,662 76,511,901
(4,225) (602, 358)
(86,344) (12,310,064)
e 290,379 ____. 41,399,334
(153,890) (21,940,097)
_______ (153,890) ____(21,940,097)
136,489 19,459,237
4,701,076 670,232,405
4,837,565 689,691,642
31 35
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11

30

JA-VP
2024 12 31
2024
146,843 20,935,407
1,896 270,313
49 6,986
2,548,005 363,269,073
(2,425,908) (345,861,704)
(227,998) (32,505,675)
(341) (48,616)
e 42,546 .. 6,065,783
(153,890) (21,940,097)
_______ (153,890) ____(21,940,097)
(111,344) (15,874,314)
359,892 51,309,802
248,548 35,435,488

31 35
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JA VP
2024 12 31
2000
21
2000 30
2024 12 31
JA VP
JA VP
2000 17 2002 2003 11 27
JA VP
2024 12 31
2024
97,062,259
114,721,819
JA VP 4,837,565
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2024

125,734
40

1
1,297,245

1,423,020
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31
Kweichow Moutai
2026 12 14 Co Ltd A Shares 125,354 (20,351)

2024 12 31
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2024 12 31

125,354 125,354 125,354

more-likely-than-not 50

more-1ikely-than-not

more-likely-than-not

open tax year open
tax year
12
2006
10 2015 15

1996

2019

16.5
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QFII

2014 11 14
CSRC

12 31

MoF
QFI1 RQFI1
2014 11 17
10
10
SAT

SAT

2024 12 31
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SAT
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2014 11 17
2024
10
SAT
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1.6
74,974
6,556
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15
2024 12 31
150,000,000 0.135
650,000,000 0.13
0.125
4,500
53,855 2024 12
31 4,505
2,195
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
2024 182,492 274
HSBC HSBC
2024 12 31
HSBC
2024

4,637,126
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248,548
1,715
(956)

6,650

GF GF

67,410

2024
9,611

(316)

9,295
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FASB
820 FASB ASC Topic 820
FASB ASC Topic 820

FASB ASC Topic 820

2024 12 31
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2024

4,511,772 4,511,772
125,354 125,354
4,511,772 125,354 4,637,126

2024 12 31 Real Gold Mining Ltd. 166,500

2024

12 31 520.45

6.40
0.00

6.40

(1.84)
0.00

(1.84)

4.90
0.00

4.90
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2025 30

2025 2025 30
114 57,488
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JA VP
2024 12 31
3,502,441 )

China Construction Bank Corp H Shares 70,000 58,076 1.20
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd H Shares 10,500 53,635 1.11
China Railway Group Ltd H Shares 209,000 106,893 2.21
3DG Holdings International Ltd 533 35

Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 23,900 252,478 5.22
JD.com Inc 9,300 161,385 3.34
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Ltd 13,000 23,949 0.49
ANTA Sports Products Ltd 7,400 74,360 1.54
Meituan 14,080 277,165 5.73
Trip.com Group Ltd 2,800 193,166 3.99
Yum China Holdings Inc 1,250 60,292 1.25
CNOOC Ltd 30,000 72,891 1.51
CITIC Securities Co Ltd H Shares 9,000 25,160 0.52
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Ltd 2,300 87,410 1.81
China Mengniu Dairy Co Ltd 7,000 15,367 0.32
China Resources Beverage Holdings Co Ltd 5,400 8,195 0.17

Nissin Foods Co Ltd 150,000 111,115 2.30
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3,502,441 )

AIA Group Ltd 19,000 137,808 2.85
China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co Ltd H Shares 13,200 43,194 0.89
Ping An Insurance (Group) Co of China Ltd H Shares 22,000 131,367 2.71
China BlueChemical Ltd H Shares 290,000 78,830 1.63
Real Gold Mining Ltd 166,500

NetEase Inc 5,200 93,921 1.94
Tencent Holdings Ltd 8,200 442,629 9.15
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Co Ltd 61,000 67,505 1.39
China Resources Land Ltd 12,000 34,861 0.72
China Vanke Co Ltd H Shares 29,200 19,975 0.41
Longfor Group Holdings Ltd 20,000 25,920 0.53
Lenovo Group Ltd 38,000 49,934 1.03
Xiaomi Corp ClI B 52,400 232,559 4.81

China Mobile Ltd 21,500 210,921 4.36

64/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JA VP
2024 12 31
4,423,566 )
Kerry Logistics Network Ltd 28,500 25,077 0.52
_.3.116,078 L 65.65
141,392
Inner Mongolia Yili Industrial Group Co Ltd A
Shares (SSC) 16,400 67,461 1.39
Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Medical Electronics Co Ltd A
Shares (SZHK) 700 24,773 0.51
Foxconn Industrial Internet Co Ltd A Shrs (SSC) 10,200 31,315 0.65
123,549 2.55
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Tong Yang Industry Co Ltd 17,000 58,792 1.21
Sunonwealth Electric Machine Industry Co Ltd 6,000 17,660 0.36
President Chain Store Corp 10,000 80,441 1.66
MediaTek Inc 2,000 86,535 1.79
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Ltd 8,000 265,700 5.49
Zhen Ding Technology Holding Ltd 55,000 204,455 4.23
Syncmold Enterprise Corp 13,000 35,650 0.74
Gigabyte Technology Co Ltd 10,000 83,641 1.73
Micro-Star International Co Ltd 7,000 39,246 0.81
Quanta Computer Inc 3,000 26,326 0.54
Tripod Technology Corp 19,000 114,918 2.38
Wistron Corp 7,000 22,182 0.46
Taiwan Union Technology Corp 5,000 25,519 0.53
Wistron NeWeb Corp 10,000 41,135 0.85

1,102,200 22.78
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91,364
PDD Holdings inc ADR 931
TAL Education Group 2,285
4,708,833 )
142,813
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd
A Shares) P-note 12/14/2026 600
5,107,711
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87,877 1.82
22,073 0.46
_____ 109,950 ______.2:28
AL 93.26_
125,354 2.59
_____ 125,35 .29
4,637,126 95.85
248,548 5.14
(48,109) (0.99)
4,837,565 100.00
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Statement of assets and liabilities
as at 31 Decamber 2024

Note 2024
US§
Assets
Investment in securities, at fair value (cost: US§5,107,711) 5(d), 8 4,637,128
Dividends and interest receivable 2,574
Cash and cash equivalents 5(d) 248 548
Total assels 4,588,248
Liabilities
Investmant managemeant fees payable 5(a) 6,556
Trustee and fund administration faes payable a(c) 4,505
Accrued expenses and other payables 39,622
Total liab(lities L __gg:aaa
MNet assetls 4,837,565
Number of units in issue (5 9,295
Net asset value per unit ] 520.45

Approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trusteeon 3§ APR 2025

HSBC Trustee, (Cayman) Limited, Truslee

LNE notes on pages {1 to 30 and the investment schedule on pages 31 to 35 form part of
these financial statements.
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Statement of operations
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Dividend income (net of withholding tax of US$13,524)
Interast income
Other income

Investment management fees
Trustee and fund administration fees
Transaction fees

Professional fees

Auditors’ remunearation

Bank charges

Annual fees

Interest expenses

Other operating expenses

Met investment loss

Met realised Josses on investments
Met unreslised gains on investments
MNet foreign exchange losses

Net realised and unrealised gains on investments and
foreign exchange losses

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations

EDINETOOOO
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Value Partners intelfigent Funds
- JA-VP China Now Contury Fund
Fimanciai stetemants for the pear andad 31 December 2024

5(d})

5(a)
5(c)
5(d)
S(d)

5(d}

2024
UsE

141,844
1,715
4_9

143,608

(74,974)
(53,855)
(7.871)
(46,302)
(29,314)

(956)

(1,973)

(307)

(14,400)

(155,714)
536,862
(4,225)

378,723

280,379

The notes on pages 11 to 30 and the investment schedule en pages 31 to 35 form part of

these financial staternents,
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Financial stafaments for the pear anded 31 Décomber 2024

Statement of changes in net assets
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Met realised losses on Investments

MNet unrealised gains on investrments

het foreign exchange losses

Met investment loss

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations
Units issued

Units redeamed

Net decrease In net assets resulting from capltal transactions
Net increase in net assets
Net assets

Beginning of year
End of year

2024
US$

(155,714)
536,662
{4,225)
(86,344)

280,379

(153,890)

(153,890)

136,489

4,701,076

4,837 565

The notes oh pages 11 to 30 and the investment schedule on pages 31 to 356 form part of

these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
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Financial slelements for the year ended 31 Decomber 2024

for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024

Uss
Operating activities
Dividends received 146,843
Interast received 1,896
Other income received 49
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,548,005
Paymenis on purchase of invesiments (2,425,908)
Operating expenses paid {227,988)
Interest paid {341)
Net cash generated from operating activities 42 548
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of units -
Paymems on redemption of units (153,880)
Net cash used in financing activities {153.5_9_13_}
MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents (111,344)
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted) at beginning of

year 359,802

Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted) at end of year 248,548

The notes on pages 11 fo 30 and the investment schedule on pages 31 ta 35 form part of

these financial statemeants.
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Notes to the financial statements

General

Value Partners Intelligent Funds (the *Trust”) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust established
under the laws of the Cayman Istands pursuant to a Trust Deed dated 21 June 2000, as
amended from time to time (the "Trust Deed"), as amended. The Trust reglistered under the
Mutual Funds Act of the Cayman Islands on 30 June 2000,

The Trust is able to issue units in various sub-funds and as at 31 December 2024, China
Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund have
been launched. China Convergence Fund, JA-WP China New Century Fund and Chinese
Mainland Focus Fund commenced operations on 17 July 2000, 7 March 2002 and 27
MNovember 2003 respectivaly,

These financial slatements have been prepared for the JA-VP China New Century Fund (the
“Sub-fund"}. The financial statements of China Convergence Fund and Chinese Mainland
Focus Fund have been prepared separately and consequently are not included in these
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the combined net assats of the Trust are as follows:

Combined

MName of Sub-funds net asseis
2024

uss

China Convergence Fund 97,062,259
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund 114,721,819
JA-VP China Mew Century Fund 4 B37 565
Value Partners Intelligent Funds 216,621,643

The investment activities of the Sub-fund are managed by Value Partners Limited (the
“Manager”) and the administration of the Sub-fund is handled by HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited (the “Administrator”) who has delegated its role to HSBC |nstitutional Trust Service
(Asia) Limited.

The objective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with medium fo long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portiolio of enterprises which are either (i) owned by
private sector interests in the Greater China Region; or (i} considered by the Manager to have
the majority of their assets situated in, or the majority of their income derived from operations
in the Greater China Region.

11
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2  Significant accounting policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP"). The Sub-fund is considered an investment
company under US GAAP and follows the accounting and reporting guidance applicable to
investment companies in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting
Standards Codification ("ASC") 946, Financial Services - Investment Companias ("ASC 9487).
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-fund are as follows:

{a} Basis of preparation

The measurement curmency of the financial statements is United States dollars {("US$" or
*USD"%) reflecting the fact thal most of the transactions are denominated in USD as well as
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") which is pegged to USD. Units of the Sub-fund are issued and
redeemed in USD and any distributions to investors will also be in USD.

The financial statements are presented in USD.
fb) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assels and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilties at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

{e} Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translaled to USD at the foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exchange differences relaling
to investments are included in gains and loszes on investments. All other foreign currency
exchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash and cash equivalents are
presented as net foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of operations. Foreign
currency exchange differences arising on realised gains and losses on disposals or
settlements of investments are recognised in the statement of operations.
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2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
{d) Investments
(it Classification

Investments consist of equity securities and participation note. The Sub-fund classifies all its
investments held for trading, which are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling
them in the near term.

(i} Recognition

The Sub-fund recognises investments on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From
thiz date any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabifities are recorded.

Financial fiabilities are not recognised uniess one of the parties has performed their obligations
under the contract.

(i) Fair value measurement principlas

"Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an ordedy transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
ar, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Sub-fund has access at that
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

VWhen available, the Sub-fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as "active” If transactions for the
asset or lability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis. The Sub-fund measures instruments quoted in an active market at a last
traded price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

The Sub-fund records derivative contracts at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivative
contracts are recorded as unrealised gains and losses The Sub-fund generally records a
realised gain or loss on the expiration, termination, or setilement of a derivative contract.

If there Is no quoted price in an active market, then the Sub-fund uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable
inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.

Investments in ather unlisted investment funds are recorded at the net asset value per share
as reported by the administrators of such funds.
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2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

{d) Investmenis {continued)

(iv) |mpairment
Financial assets thal are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the date of each
statement of assets and liabilities to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of

operations as the difference cetween the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate,

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognised on a financlal asset
carried al amortised cost decreases and the decreass can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the write-down, the write-down is reversed through the statement of operations.

(v} Derecognition

The Sub-fund uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses on
derecognition.

(e} Interastincome and expense

Interest income and expense is recognised in the statement of operations as it accrues, using
the original effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or origination
date. Interest income and expense includes the amortisation of any discount or premium,
transaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing
instrument and ils amount at maturily calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

(0 Dividend income

Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity securities are recognised in the statement
of operations on the ex-dividend date.

In some cases, the Sub-fund may choose to receive dividends in the form of additional shares
rather than cash. In such cases the Sub-fund recognises the dividend income for the amount
of the cash dividend alternative with the comesponding debit trested as an additional
investment.

{g) Expenses

All expenses are recognised in the statement of operations on an accrual basis.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash denominated in foreign currencies, represents cash
deposits held at financial institutions. Cash and cash equivalents include short-term highly
liquid investments of sufficient credit quality that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and have original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are
camied at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. Cash and cash
equivalents are held for meeting short-term liquidity requirements, rather than for investment
purposes. All cash and cash equivalents are unrestricted.

Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in the Cayman Islands, the Sub-fund is exempt from
paying taxes on income, profits or capital gains. The Trust has received an undertaking from
the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from tax In the Cayman Islands.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-fund may be subject to withholding tax
imposed in the country of origin. Investment income is recorded net of withholding tax and is
recognised in the statement of operations as incurred. Refer to note 4 for more details.

Related parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Sub-
fund if they have the ability, directly or indirechly, to control or exercise significant influence
over the Sub-fund in making financial and operating decisions. Related parfies may be
individuals or entities.

Offsetting of assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilittes are offset and the nel amount presented in the
statement of assets and liabilities when, and only when, the Sub-fund has a legal right to offset
the amounts and it intends either to setlle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for net realised gains and change in
realised losses on investments and foreign currencies.
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Financial instruments and associated risks

The Sub-fund mainlains positions in a v:ariétyr of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments as dictated by its investment management strategy. The Sub-fund's investments
comprise equity securities and participation note.

The Sub-fund's investing aclivities expose it fo various types of risk that are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests, The most important types of financial
risk to which the Sub-fund is exposed to are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Asset allocation is determined by the Manager who manages the distribution of the assets to
achieve the investment objective. Divergence from target asset aliocations and the
composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Manager.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments cutstanding at the date of the statement of
asgets and liabilities and the risk management policies employed by the Sub-fund are
discussed below.

Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk.

The Sub-fund's strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the Sub-fund’s
invesiment objective. The investment cbjective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with
medium to leng-term capital appreciation (in USD terms). The Sub-fund’'s market risk is
managed on a daily basis by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedures in place.,
The Sub-fund's overall market positions are monitored on a timely basis by the Manager,

Details of the Sub-fund's investment portfolio as at the date of the stalement of assets and
liabilities are disclosed in the investment schedule. All individual investments are disclosed

separately,

Currency risk

The Sub-fund may invest in financial instruments and enter info transactions denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the Sub-fund is exposed to risks
that the exchange rate of its cumrency relative to other forelgn currencies may change in a2
manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Sub-fund's assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the USD.

The Sub-fund is not subject to significant amounts of currency risk because most of the assets
and liabilities are denominated in HKD which is pegged to the USD.
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Financial instruments and associated risks {continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The Sub-fund's total net exposure to fluctuations in forelgn currency exchange rates as at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilities was as follows:

Net expostre

2024

Us$

Chinese Yuan 125,734
Japanese Yen 40
Singapore dollar 1
MNew Taiwan dollar 1,297,245
1,423,020

The Sub-fund does not expect any significant movemeants in the HKDAUSD exchange rate as
the HKD is pegged to the USD and accordingly the HKD foreign currency assets and liabilities
have been excluded on the above analysis,

Interest rate risk
The majority of the Sub-fund's financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-bearing.

All interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities mature or reprice in the short-term, no longer
than twelve months. As a resuit, the Sub-fund is subject to limited exposure to fair value
interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of markel interast rates. Any excess
cash and cash equivalents of the Sub-fund are invested in short-term instrumants,

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

As the majority of the Sub-fund's financial mstruments are camied at fair value with fair value
changes recognised in the statement of operations, all changes in market conditions will
directly affect net assels resulting from operations and the financial instruments’ carrying
amounts on the statement of assets and liabilities.

Price risk is mitigated by the Manager by constructing a diversified portfolio of instruments
traded on various markets, In addition, price risk may be hedged using derivative financial
instruments such as oplions, warrants or futures,
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Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment thal it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the counterparty
is not backed by an exchange clearing house,

The Sub-fund's exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager an an ongoing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting setlement. Risk
relating to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short seltlement period
involved,

The carrying amounts of financlal assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure on
the statement of assets and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2024, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk to
counterparties excapt to the custodian. Substantially all the financial instruments are cleared
through and held in custody primarily by one major international institution. The Sub-fund is
subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfil its obligations either
to return the Sub-fund’'s securities or repay amounts owad. The institution is rated Aa3 per
credit ratings issved by Moody's. The Sub-fund does not anticipate any losses as a result of
this concentration.

Liquidity risk

The Sub-fund's Explanatory Memorandum provides for the daily creation and cancellation of
units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions at any
time.

The Sub-fund invested in a closed-ended fund which is not traded in an organised public
markel. The Sub-fund also invested in an equity which is suspended and delisted from trading
as at year end. These investments generally might be illiquid. As a result, the Sub-fund might
not be able to Aquidate these investments quickly at an amount close to its fair value in order
to meet its liquidity requirements, or to respond fo specific events such as deterioration in the
craditworthinass of any particular issuer,

The Sub-fund predominantly invested in listed equity securities which are considered to be
readily realisable as they are all listed on major stock exchanges.

Derivative contracis

As at 31 December 2024, the Sub-fund's holding in participation note as specified in the
following table:

18

79/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Vialue Parfners fntalfigent Funds
= J4-VP China Maw Cantury Fund
Financial statements for he year andad 31 Dacamber 2024

3  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
{d) Derivative coniracis {continued)
As at 31 December 2024

Amounts includad in the
statemant of oparalions
Change i
Long exposuve Realisod  unrealised
Type of contract Expirafion Undieying Fair valug gainfloss gaindoss
uss uss Uss

14 Dacamber Kweaichow Maoutai Co
Participation note 2028 Lid A Sharas 125,354 - {20,351)

The participation note disclosed above is the only derivative contract that the Sub-fund entered
into during the year endad 31 December 2024.

(e} Offsetting financlal assets and financial Nabilities

Mone of the financial assets and financial liabilities Is offset in the statement of financial
position.

The enforceable master netling arrangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
statement of assets and liabilities. This is because they create a right of set-off of recognised
amounts that is enforceable only following on event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the
Sub-fund or its counterparties. In addition, the Sub-fund and its counterparties do not intend to
saltle on a net basis or to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities simultaneously.

The gross amounts of recognised financial assets and financial liabilities and their net amounts
presented in the statement of assets and labilities have been measured in the statement of
assets and liabilities at fair value,

As at 31 December 2024

Financial assets subjecl to enforceable master netfing arrangements

financisl  Net amounts

Gross offsel assels of Anancial
amouwnls inlhe  presented in instrumants
af recognised stalement  the statement fincluding Cash
fnanciad  of assels end  of assets and non-cesh coliatern! Nt
B5sals Fabiities Nabiities coliaters) recoived smaunt
5 4 5 L1 3 5
Denvative finandal
insbruments:
- Participation note
- Countarpany A 125,554 g 125,354 - - 125,354
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4 Taxation

{a} There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands as the Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local
income, profits and capital gains taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included
in these financial statements.

{b) The Sub-fund recognises the tax benefits of uncertain tax positions only where the posilion is
more likely than not (i.e. greater than 50 percent) to be sustained assuming examination by a

taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax
position has met the recognition threshold, the Sub-fund must presume that the position will
be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant
information. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold is
measured to determine the amount of benefit io recognise in the Sub-fund's financial
staternents. Income tax and related interest and penalties would be recognised by the Sub-
fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax positions were deemed to not
meet the more likely than not threshold.

The Sub-fund analyses all open tax years for all major taxing jurisdictions. Open tax years are
those that are open for exam by taxing authorities, as defined by the Statute of Limitations in
each jurisdiction. The Sub-fund identifies its major tax jurisdictions as the Cayman Islands and
foreign jurisdictions where the Sub-fund makes significant invesiments. The Sub-fund has no
examinations by taxing authorities in progress.

Management has analysed the Sub-fund's tax positions, and has concluded that no liability for
unrecognised tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions. Further,
management is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total
amounts of unrecognised tax benefils will significantly change in the next twelve months.

fe} The Profits Tax Exemption for Offshore Funds Ordinance (“the Offshore Funds Crdinance”™}
came into effect on 10 March 2006 and has been amended on 17 July 2015, Under the
Offshore Funds Ordinance, exemption from Hong ¥ong profits tax is granted to non-resident
persons in respect of profits from specified transactions camried out through or arranged by
cerlain specified persons in any year of assessment on or after 1 April 1996.

Effective from 1 Aprl 2019, the Inland Revenue (Profits Tax Exemption for Funds)
(Amendment) Ordinance {collectively referred as “the Funds Exemplion Ordinances”) provides
profits tax exemption for funds whether or not the central management and control of the funds
is exercised in Hong Kong subject to certain conditions. The Manager believes that they have
implemented steps to enable the Sub-fund to meet the exemption criteria under the Funds
Exemption Ordinances. if the Sub-fund does not meet the exemption criteria under the Funds
Exemption Ordinances, the Sub-fund is exposed to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5%
in respect of any profits which arise in or are derived from Hong Kong and which are not capital
profits or exempt profits if it is treated as carrying on a trade or business in Hong Kong either
on its own account or through any persan as an agent.
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4  Taxation (continued)

fd) In preparing these financial stalements, the Manager has made certain assumptions and used
various estimates concerning the tax exposure which Is dependent on what might happen in
the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual results.

The Sub-fund invests in derivative instruments linked to "A” shares, issued by one or more
Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors (“QFIls") or their affiliates as well as "A" ghares of
companies listed in the PRC, via the Manager’'s QFII guota.

On 14 MNovember 2014, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the “MoF"}, the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the "CSRC") jointly issued the "Nofice on temporary exemption of Corporate
Income Tax on capilal gains derived from the transfer of equily investment assets such as
PRC domestic stocks by QFIl and RQFII" {the “Notice™). According to the Notice, amaongst
other things, QFlls and RQFIls, which do not have an establishment or place of business in
the PRC or have an establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in the PRC
is not effectively connected with such establishment, will be temporarily exempt from corporate
income tax an gains derived from the transfer of PRC equity investment assets (including
China "A" shares) effective from 17 November 2014, Accordingly, as at 31 December 2024,
the Sub-fund had not made any provision for the tax on capital gains on derivatives instruments
linked to “A" shares and China “A® shares on or after 17 Movember 2014 based on the Notice.

The Sub-fund also directly invests in “B” shares of companies listed in the PRC for subscription
by foreign investors and may be subject to PRC withholding tax of 10% on dividend income.
A 10% withholding tax may also be payable on the capilal gains derived from the sale of "B"
shares. Under current PRC tax laws, gains derived from the transfer of shares of PRC
companies by non-residents should be subject to a withholding tax of 10%, unless exempt
under relevant tax treaties. The SAT has remained silent on the collection of withholding tax
for capital gains and until further clarification is issued by the SAT, the Manager considers that
there is significant uncertainty in respect of whether the Sub-fund has any liability and the
extent of such liability with respect to tax on capital gains derived from the sale of PRC "B”
sghares. In making this assassment, the Manager has considered (i) the current position of the
SAT, (ii) the absence of a withholding mechanism of the relevant tax and (i) current market
practice. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2024, the Sub-fund had not made any provision for
the tax on caplital gains on “B” shares based on the above judgments made by the Manager.

The Manager will continually reassess the withholding income tax provisioning approach on
an on-going basis taking into account any recent development in the market.

21

82/281



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Vaiua Partnars Inteligent Funds
= JA-VP Ching New Candury Fund
Financial stetomants for the yesr anded 31 Docembar 2024

§ Related party transactions

The Sub-fund entered into the following material related party transactions for the year. All
such transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms.

{a) Investmant management fees

The Manager, an investment management company incorporated in British Virgin Islands, has
implemented the investment strategy as specified in the Explanatory Memorandum.

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager receives a management fee
monthly in arrears at an annual rate of 1.6% of the net assets on each valuation day as defined
in the Explanatory Memorandum. An investment management fee of USE74,974 was charged
to the statement of operations during the year. Investment management fees payable of
US$6,556 is included in liabilities as at 31 December 2024,

{b) Performance fees

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager is aiso entitled to a performance
fea, calculated at a high-on-high basis, if the net asset value per unit as at the last valuation
day of a calendar quarter (prior to the acerual of any performance fee for that calendar quarter
but including any distribution declared or paid in respect of the relevant performance periods)
exceeds the higher of.

(i the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the last valuation day in the
last calendar quarter in respect of which a performance fee was paid to the Manager in
respect of the Sub-fund, after payment of such performance fee, and

(iiy the initial offer price at which the units were first offered.

The rate of performance fees payable is 15% and is calculated by multiplying this fee rate by
the product of the excess of the net assat value per unit (calculated as stated above) and the
average of the number of units in issue immediately after each valuation day in the relevant

calendar quarter. No performance fees were charged to the statement of operations during the
year. Mo performance fees payable as at 31 December 2024.
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5§ Related party transactions (continued)
fe}) Trusiee and fund administration fees

The Trustee is entilled 1o monthly trustee and fund administration fees which are determined
based on the monthly net asset value of the Sub-fund as below:

Trustee and
fund
administration
fee
par annum
shown as % of
net assef value
Net assof value

First US$150 million 0.135%
Mext US3650 million 0.13%
Thereafter 0.125%

The trustee and fund administration fees are subject to a monthly minimum of US$4,500.

Trustee and fund administration fees of US$H53,855 were charged to the statement of
operations during the year. Trustee and fund administration fees payables of US$4,505 is
included in liabilities as at 31 December 2024,

{d} Balances/fransactions with the group company of the Trustes

During the year, the Custodian of the Sub-fund, HSBC Ingtitutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, charged transaction fees of
UISS$2,195 for handling each purchase or sale of investments,

During the year, the Sub-fund utilised the services of The Hongkeong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited ("HSBC"), which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, in
its purchase and sale of investments. Delails of such transactions executed and fees paid

ara set out below:
Value of iransactions Commission and other
executad through HSBC fees paid fo HSBC
Uss uss
Year 2024 182,492 274
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5  Related party transactions (continued)

The Sub-fund maintains bank accounts with HSBC. The Sub-fund may also maintain cash
deposits which were held as collateral for transactions involving borrowed securities with
HSBC during the year. Mo cash deposits and securities were held or pledged as collateral as
al 31 December 2024,

Cther information relating to the transaclions/balances with HSBC is set out below:

2024

uss
Investments held with custodian 4,637,126
Bank accounts
Bank balance 248,548
Interest income 1,715
Bank charges (958)
Professional fees 6,650

{e) Balances/transactions with the group company of the Manager

Curing the year, the Sub-fund ulilised the services of GF Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage
Limited, which is a shareholder of group company of the Manager of the Sub-fund, in its
purchase and sale of investments. Details of such transactions executed and fees paid are

set out below:
Value of transactions Commission end other
execuled through GF fees paid o GF
uss UsSh
Year 2024 67,410 68
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-] Units in issue

Number of
units
2024
Ag at 1 January a.611
Issua of units -
Redemption of units (318)
As at 31 December 9295

The rights attaching to each unit are as follows:

The holders of the units have the right to receive notice of, attend and vote at meetings of the
Sub-fund. The holder of each such unit has the right to one vote for each such unit registered
in his name. The holders are entitied to receive all dividends declared and paid by the Sub-
fund. Upon winding up, the holders are entitled 1o a return of capital based on the net assets
value per unit of the Sub-fund.

All distributable profits of the Sub-fund will be accumulated and no distribution of income will
be made from the Sub-fund, unless otherwise determined by the Manager,
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Soft commission arrangements

The Manager andfor any company associated with it and its delegates may enter into soft
dollars/commission sharing arrangements with brokers through which brokerage transactions
are entered on behalf of clients under management. The Manager may receive, and is entitled
to retain, research products and services (known as soft dollar benefils) which are of
demonstrable benefit to the Sub-fund (as may be permitted under applicable rules and
regulations) from brokers and other persons through whom investment transactions are carried
out (the "brokers”). Soft dollars may be received from them provided that the quality of
transaction execution is consistent with best execution standards and brokerage rates are not
in excess of the customary full-service brokerage rates.

Such soft dollar benefits may include research and advisory services; economic and political
analysis; portfolio analysis, including valuation and performance measurement, market
analysis, data and quotation services and software incidental to the above goods and services;
clearing and custodian services and invesiment related publications. For the avoidance of
doubt, soft dollar benefits do not inciude travel, accommaodation, entertainment, general
administrative goods and services, general office equipment or premises, membership fees,
employes salaries or direct money payments.

The Manager considers many judgemental factors deemed relevant in determining whether a
broker provides best execution. In general, investment orders are allocated to brokers based
on the range and overall quality of services offered by the broker. The core factors in
determining the quality of services are the execution performance and capability of the broker.
Other factors, such as the quality and quantity of research and investment ideas offered,
access to potential investee companies and commission rate charges, would also be taken
into consideration. Soft dollar benefils received from brokers should not be a determinant
factor on allocating orders among brokers, The Manager has implemented policies and
procedures to ensure that fransactions executed with brokers pursuant to a soft dollar
commission sharing arrangement are conducted in the best execution standard. Soft dollars
benefits received by the Manager are used to facilitate in the Manager's investment
management process, such benefits assist the Manager in fulfilling its overall duty to clients
and may be used in servicing any or all of the Manager's client accounts over which tha
Manager exercises investment discretion. The Manager does not usually atiempt to
allocatefattribute the soft dollar benefils to individual client account, as goods and services
obtained may be beneficial to all clients in general, including those client accounts that do not
generate credit to acquire the soft dollar benefits.

For the years ended 31 December 2024, the Manager did not obtain any services through
soft dollars arrangements and no such commission was paid from the Sub-fund.
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8 Fair value

The Sub-fund's investments are carried at fair value on the statement of assels and liabilities.
The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair value due to the
immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The Sub-fund utilises various methods to measure the fair value of its investments on a
recurring basis. Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 820 (FASB ASC Topic 820) defines fair value, establishes a consistent framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measuramanis.
FASB ASC Topic 820, among other things, requires the Sub-fund to maximise the use of
cbservable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable input when measuring fair value.

(@) Fair vafue hierarchy

FASB ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation technigues based on whether the
inputs to those valuation technigues are obsarvable or unobservable. The Sub-fund utilises
valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs fo the extent possible. The Sub-fund determines fair value based on
assumplions that market parficipants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal
or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions in fair value
measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable and
unabservable inputs, which are categorised in one of the following levels:

= Lewvel 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical
instrumants.

- Lewvel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable eithar
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than
active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

- Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the Instrument's valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments but for which
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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Fair value {continued)
Determination of fair value

The Sub-fund measures fair value using the procedures set out below for the investments
measured at fair value.

When available and for guoted investments, the Sub-fund generally uses quoted markel prices
in active markets to determine fair value, and classifies such items in Level 1.

In some cases where a market price is available and relevant to measure the fair value of a
particular investment, the Sub-fund will caleulate the fair value of such investment by referance
to such market price, in which case the tems are classified in Level 2.

If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed
valuation techniques that use, where possible, current market-based or independently sourced
market parameters, such as interest rales, currency rates, option volatilifies, etc. Items valued
using such internally generated valuation techniques are classified according to the lowest
level input or value driver that is significant to the valuation. Thus, an item may be classified
in Level 3 even though there may be some significant inputs that are readily observable,
including market comparables of listed companies.

Items measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table presents for each of the fair value hierarchy levels the Sub-fund's
investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31 December 2024.

2024

With

Quoted Quoted significant

market obsarvable  unobservable

price inputs inputs
{Laval 1) {Levef 2) {Leval 3)* Total
USs uss Uss uss

Assels

Equity securities 4,511,772 - - 4,511,772
Participation note - 125,354 - 125,354
Total 4511772 125,354 - 4 637 126

There ware no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfars into or out of Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy during the year.

" The investment in Real Gold Mining Ltd. (166,500 shares) as at 31 December 2024 is
classified as level 3 investments since there is no observable inputs from the market. If is

suspended and delisted shares and the management estimate that the fair value is
considerned as Ierm.
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Financial highlights
Operating performance per unit:

Met asset value per unit as at 1 January

Income from investment operations:

Met investment loss

Met realised and unrealised gains on investments and
foreign exchange losses

Total gain from investment operations

Net asset value per unit as at 31 December
Total return:

Total return before performance fee
Perfarmance fee

Total return after performance fee

Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets:

Net investment loss before performance fee
Performance fee

Met investment loss afler performance fee
Ratio of expenses to average net assets:

Expenses before performance fee
Perfarmance fee

Total expenses
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Financial highlights (continued)

Net investrment loss from investment operations per unit is calculated based on average
number of units outstanding of the Sub-fund for the year ended 31 December 2024,

Total return is calculated by comparing the ending net asset value ("NAV") per unit to the
beginning MAV per unit. An individual investor's retum may vary from these based on the timing
of capital transactions.

Expense ratio is calculated for the Sub-fund as a whole. An individual investor's ratios may
vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital transactions.

Indemnification

In the normal course of business, the Sub-fund enters into conlracts that contain a variety of
representations which provide general indemnifications. The Sub-fund’s maximum exposure
under these agreements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be against
the Sub-fund that have not vet occurred. However, based on experience, the Sub-fund expects
the risk of loss to be remote.

Subsequent events

These financial statements were approved by management on 30 April 2025. Subsequent
events have been evaluated through this date.

From the perod from 1 January 2025 to 30 April 2025, the Sub-fund did not receive any
subscription of units but redemption of 114 units which amounted to US$57,488.
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2024

% of
nef
Holdings  Fair value assels
uss
Listed equity securities
Hong Kong (cost: US$ 3,602, 441)
Banks
China Construction Bank Corp H Shares 70,000 58,076 1.20
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd H Shares 10,500 53,635 1.1
Capital Goods
China Railway Group Ltd H Shares 208,000 106,893 2.21
Consumer Discretionary Distribution & Retail
30G Heldings International Ltd 533 35 -
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 23,900 252,478 5.22
JD.com Inc 9,300 161,385 3.34
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Litd 13,000 23,949 0.49
Consumer Durables & Apparel
AMTA Sports Products Ltd 7,400 74,360 1.54
Consumer Services
Meituan 14,080 277,165 573
TFrip.com Group Lid 2,800 193,166 3.99
¥um China Holdings Inc 1,250 60,292 1.25
Energy
CHOOC Ltd 30,000 72,881 1.81
Financial Services
CITIC Securities Co Ltd H Shares 9,000 25,180 0.52
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Ltd 2,300 87.410 1.B1
Food, Beverage & Tobacco
China Mengniu Dairy Co Ltd 7,000 15,367 0.32
China Resources Baverage Holdings Co Ltd 5400 8,195 0.147
Missin Foods Co Ltd 150,000 111,115 2.30
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2024 (Continued)
% of
nef
Holdings  Fair vaiue assels
uss
Listed equity securities
Hong Kong (cost: US$ 3,502,441) {Continued)
Insurance
AlA Group Lid 18,000 137,808 2.85
China Pacific Insurance {Group) Co Ltd H Shares 13,200 43,194 0.89
Ping An Insuranca (Group) Co of China Ltd H Shares 22,000 131,267 271
Materials
China BlueChemical Ltd H Shares 280,000 78,830 1.63
Mineral Resources
Real Gold Mining Ltd 166,500 - -
Media & Entertainment
MetEase Ing 5,200 83,921 1.84
Tencent Holdings Ltd 8,200 442 629 8.15
Pharmaceuticals, Biotechnology & Life Sclences
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Co Lid 61,000 67.505 1.39
Real Estate Management & Development
China Resources Land Ltd 12,000 34,861 0.72
China Vanke Co Lid H Shares 29,200 19,975 0.41
Leongfor Group Holdings Ltd 20,000 25.920 0.53
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Lenovo Group Ltd 38,000 49934 1.03
Xiaomi Corp CI B 52,400 232,559 4.81
Telecommunication Services
China Mobile Ltd 21,500 210,921 4,36

3z
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2024 (Continued)

% of
net
Holdings  Fairvalue  assets
USs

Listed equity securities (Continued)
Hong Kong (cost: US$4,423,566) (Continued)
Transportation
Kemy Logistics Network Ltd 28,500 25,077 0.52
Total Hong Kong listed equity securities in long

position 3,176,073 65.65
China (cost: US$141,392)
Food, Beverage & Tobacco
Inner Mongolia Yili Industrial Group Co Ltd A Shares

(SSC) 16,400 67,461 1.39
Health Care Equipment & Services
Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Medical Electronics Co Lid A

Shares (SZHK} 700 24,773 0.51
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Foxconn industrial Internet Co Ltd A Shrs (SSC) 10,200 31,315 0.65
Total China listed equity securities in long

position 123,549 255
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2024 (Continued)

% of
net
Holdings  Fair value assels
uss
Listed equity securities {Continued)
Taiwan {cost: US§973,635)
Automobiles & Components
Tong Yang Industry Co Ltd 17,000 58,792 1.21
Capital Goods
Sunonwealth Electric Machine Industry Co Lid 5,000 17,660 0.36
Consumer Staples Distribulion & Retail
President Chain Store Corp 10,000 80,441 1.66
Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment
MediaTek Inc 2,000 868,535 1.79
Tamwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Lid 8,000 285,700 5.49
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Zhen Ding Technology Holding Ltd 55,000 204 455 4.23
Syncmold Enterprise Corp 13,000 35,650 0.74
Gigabyte Technology Co Ltd 10,000 83,641 1.73
Micro-Star International Co Ltd 7.000 39,246 0.81
Cuanta Computer Inc 3.000 26,326 0.54
Tripad Technology Corp 19,000 114,918 2.38
Wistron Corp 7,000 22,182 0.48
Taiwan Union Technology Corp 5,000 25,519 0.53
Wistron NeWeb Corp 10,000 41,135 0.85
Total Taiwan listed equity securities in long
position 1,102,200 2278
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2024 (Continued)

% of
net
Holdings  Fair value assels
uss
The United States of America (cost: US$ 91,364)
Consumer Discretionary Distribution & Retail
PDD Holdings inc ADR 931 B87.877 182
Consumer Services
TAL Education Group 2,285 22073 0.48
Total The United States of Amerlca listed equity
securities in long position 109,950 2.28
Total listed equity securities in long position {cost:
US$ 4,708,833) 4,511,772 93.26
Participation note in leng position (cost:
US$142,813)
CICC Financial Trading Lid {Kweichow Moutai Co Lid
A Shares) P-note 12/14/2026 600 125,354 2.59
Total participation note In long position 125,354 2.59
Total investments in long position
(cost: USE USSE5,107,711) 4 637,126 95.85
Cash and cash equivalents 248,548 5.14
Other net liabilities (48,109)  (0.99)
Total net assets 4,837,565 100.00
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2023 12 31
JA-VP
2023 12 31
2023

5,385,522 5(d), 8 4,378,275 624,210,667

7,754 1,105,488

5(d) 359,892 51,309,802

4,745,921 676,625,957

5(a) 6,264 893,058

5(c) 4,500 641,565

34,081 4,858,928
e 44,845 . 6,393,552

4,701,076 670,232,405

6 9,611
9 489.13 69,735
2024 26

29 30 34
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2023 12 31

2023

11,684 143,525 20,462,359

5(d) 2,128 303,389

________ 145,653 = 20,765,748

5(a) (87,236) (12,437,237)

5(c) (54,146) (7,719,595)

5(d) (8,292) (1,182,190)

5(d) (38,126) (5,435,624)

(29,511) (4,207,383)

5(d) (671) (95,664)

(2,068) (294,835)

(996) (142,000)

(14,459) (2,061,420)

_______ (235,505) ____(83.,575,948)

________ (89,852) ____(12,810,200)

(894, 338) (127,505, 769)

257,920 36,771,654

(2,181) (310, 945)

_______ (638,599) ____(91,045,059)

(728,451) (103,855, 259)

30 34
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2023 12 31
2023
(894,338) (127,505,769)
257,920 36,771,654
(2,181) (310,945)
(89,852) (12,810,200)
_______ (728,451) ___ (103,855,259)
4,757 678,205
(473,655) (67,528,993)
_______ (468,898) ____ (66.850,788)
(1,197,349) (170,706,047)
5,898,425 840,938,452
4,701,076 670,232,405

30 34
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2023 12 31
2023
140,257 19,996,440
1,919 273,592
3,413,015 486,593,549
(2,591,643) (369,490,543)
(236,634) (33,736,909)
(1,013) (144,423)
e 725,901 103,491,706
4,757 678,205
(473,655) (67,528,993)
(468,898) (66,850,788)
257,003 36,640,918
102,889 14,668,885
359,892 51,309,802
30 34
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JA VP
2023 12 31
2000
21
2000 30
2023 12 31
JA VP
JA VP
2000 17 2002 2003 11 27
JA VP
2023 12 31
2023
97,865,466
124,181,721
JA VP 4,701,076
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2023

229,506
117

1
451,316

680,940
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2023 12 31
Kweichow Moutai
2026 12 14 Co Ltd A Shares 145,705 2,892

2023 12 31
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2023 12 31

A 145,705 145,705 145,705

more-likely-than-not 50

more-1ikely-than-not

more-likely-than-not

open tax year open
tax year
12
2006
10 2015 15

1996

2019

16.5
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QFlIs
QFII

2014 11 14
CSRC

12 31

MoF
QFI1 RQFI1
2014 11 17
10
10
SAT

SAT

2023 12 31
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15
2023 12 31
150,000,000 0.135
650,000,000 0.13
0.125
4,500
54,146 2023 12
31 4,500
1,692
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
2023
HSBC HSBC
2023 12 31
HSBC
2023

4,378,275
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359,892
2,128
(671)

(6,650)

2023
10,476
10

(875)

9,611
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2023 12 31
1,495,024 2022 4,526,137

2,103 2022 6,793

FASB
820 FASB ASC Topic 820
FASB ASC Topic 820
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2023
4,232,570 4,232,570
145,705 145,705
4,232,570 145,705 4,378,275

Real Gold Mining Ltd. 166,500
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2023

(9.35)
(64.56)
(73.91)

489.13

(13.13)

(13.13)

(1.68)

(1.68)

4.39

4.39




10

11

2024 26

2024 2024 26
105,530

2023 12 31
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Valya Partnars inteligen! Funds
- JA-VR China Naw Candury Fund
Finencial slatements fortte year ended 31 Dacember 2023

Statement of assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2023

Mote 2023
Uss
Aasefs
Invastment in securilies, al fair value {cost: US$5,385,522) 5(d), B 4,378,275
Dividends and interest receivable 7754
Cash and cash equivalents 5(d) 359,892
Total assets 4745021
Liahilities
Investment management fees payabla S(a) 6,264
Trustee and fund administration fees payable 5(c) 4,500
Accrued expenses and other payables 34,081
Total llakilities o 44:_Bj_§
Net assets 4,701,076
Number of units in issue 6 2,611
Net assst value per unit 9 489,13

Approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on 26 Apri| 2024,

Signed by:
Value Partners Limited, Manager HSBC Trustee {Cayman} Limited, Trusles

A A

The notes on pages 11 to 29 and the inveslment schedule on pages 30 fo 34 form part of
these financlal statements.
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Statement of operations
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Dividend income (net of withholding tax of US$11,684)
Interest income

Investment management fees
Trustee and fund administration fees
Transaction fees

Professional fees

Auditors' remuneration

Bank charges

Annual fees

Interast expansas

Cther operating expenses

MNet invesiment loss

Met realised losses on invastments
Met unrealised gains on invesiments
Met fareign exchange losses

Net realised and unrealised losses on investments and
foreign exchange losses

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations
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Valve Pariners inlskigent Funds
- JA-VP China New Contwry Fund
Firaneal sletemema forithe yeer onded 31 December 2023

Mole

5(d)

5(a)
5(c)
5(d)
5(d)

5(d) -

2023
uss

143,525
2,128

145,653

(87,236)
(54,148)
(8,292)
(38,128)
(20,511)
(671)
(2,068)
(998)
(14,450)

(235,505)

(B94,338)
257,920
{2,181)

mm——————— e

(728,451)

The notes on pages 11 to 28 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 34 form pard of

these financial statements.
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Valve Pariners inleligen Funds

= JA-VP China Naw Canlury Fund
Frencial statements farthe yeer anded 31 December 2023

Statement of changes in net assets
for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023

uss
Met realized logses on investments (894, 338)
Met unrealised gains on invesiments 257,920
Met foreign exchange losses (2,181)
Met investment loss (89,852)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from cperations g i??fﬂi‘:_]
Units issued 4,787
Units redeemed {473,855)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from capital transactions ____(468,898)
Met decrease in net assets {1,197,349)
Net assets
Beginning of year 5,598.42§
End of year 4,701,076

The notes on pages 11 to 29 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 34 form part of
these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2023

Operating activities

Dividends received
Interest received

Proceeds from sale of investments
Payments on purchase of investments

Operating expenses paid

Interest paid

MNet cash generated from operating activities
Financing activities

Proceads from issue of units
Payments on redemption of units

Met cash used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents {unrestricted) at beginning of

year

Cash and cash equivalents {unrestricted) at end of year
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Veiee Pertnecs ideligent Funds
= Ji=VP Ching New Century Fund

Finangia! stelemants for the pear ended 31 Docember 2023

2023
uss

140,257

1.918

3413.015
(2,581.643)
{238,634)
(1,013)

257,003

102,888

359,892

The notes on pages 11 to 28 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 34 form part of

these financial statements.
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Veiue Paniners infeligen! Funds
= =P Cihina New Canluny Fund
Financial slalemeartis for the pear ended 31 Decamber 2023

Notes to the financial statements

General

Valug Partners Intelligent Funds (the "Trust™) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust
established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to a Trust Deed dated 21 June
2000, as amended from time to time {the "Trust Deed”), as amended. The Trust registered
under the Mutual Funds Act of the Cayman Islands on 30 June 2000,

The Trust is able to Issue units in various sub-funds and as at 31 December 2023, China
Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund
have been launched. China Corwergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund and
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund commenced operations on 17 July 2000, 7 March 2002 and
27 November 2003 respectively.

These financial statements have been prepared for the JA-VP China New Cenfury Fund (the
“Sub-fund®). The financial statemants of China Convergence Furd and Chinese Mainland
Focus Fund have bean prepared separately and consequently are not included in these
financial statements.

Ag at 31 December 2023, the combined net assets of the Trust are as follows:

Combined

Mame af sub-funds nel assels
2023

uss

China Convergence Fund 97,865,466
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund 124,181,721
JANP China New Century Fund 4,701,076
Value Partners Intelligent Funds 226,748,263

The investment activities of the Sub-fund are managed by Value Pariners Limited (the
"Manager") and the administration of the Sub-fund is handled by HSBC Trustes (Cayman)
Limited {the “Administrator”) who has delegated its role to HSBC Institutional Trust Service
(Asia) Limited.

The abjective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with medium to long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of enterprises which are either (i) owned by
private sector interests in the Greater China Region; or (i) considered by the Manager to
have the majority of their assets situated in, or the majority of their income derived from
operations in the Greater China Region,

1
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Valve Partnars infsiigent Funds
= JA-VP China New Cendury Fund
Financial slalements for the yeer ondad 37 December 2022

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles {(*US GAAP"), The Sub-fund is considered an
investment company under US GAAP and fallows the accounting and reporting guidance
applicable to investment companies in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASE")
Accounting Standards Codification ("JASC") 246, Financial Services - Investment Companies
("ASC 8467). The signifizant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-fund are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The measurement cumency of the financial stalements is United States dollars ("USE" or
“UsD") reflecting the fact fhat most of the transactions are dencminated in USD as well as
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") which is pegged to USD. Units of the Sub-fund are issued and
redeemed in USD and any distributions to investors will also be in USD.

The financial statements are presented in USD.
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with LS GAAP requires management
and disclosure of conlingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Fareign currency transiation

Transactions in fareign currencies are translated at the foreign cumency exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to USD at the foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exchange differences
relating to investments are included in gains and losses on investments. All other foreian
currency axchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash and cash
equivalents are presented as net foreign exchange gain or loss in the statemant of
operations. Foreign currency exchange differences arising on realised gains and losses on
disposals or seitlements of investments ara recognised in the statement of cperations.

12
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Velue Farners Inlefigen! Funds
= JA-VP Chima New Century Fund
Finangis! slatlements for the year anded 31 Decamber 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)
fnvestments
Classification

Investments consist of equity securilies and pariicipation note. The Sub-fund classifies all its
investments held for trading, which are bought and held principally for the punpose of salling
them in the near term,

Recognition

The Sub-fund recognises investments on the date it becomas a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From
this date any gains and losses arising fram changes in fair value of the financial assats or
financial liabilities are recorded.

Financial liabilities are not recognisad unless ona of the parties has performed their
obligations under the contract.

Fair value measurement principles

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an agset or paid to lransfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
ar, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Sub-fund has access at that
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk,

When available, the Sub-fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market far that instrument. A market is regarded as “aclive” if transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an engoing basis. The Sub-fund measures instruments quoted in an active
market at a last traded price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the
exit price.

The Sub-fund records derivative contracis at fair value, Changes in the fair value of
derivative contracts are recorded as unrealised gains and losses The Sub-fund generally
records a realised gain er loss on the expiralion, termination, or setllement of a derivative
contracl.

If thare is no quoted price in an active market, then the Sub-fund uses valuation technigues
that maximise the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable
inputs. The chosen valuation technigue incerporates all of the factors that market
paricipants would take into account in pricing a lransaction.

Investments in other unlisted investment funds are recorded at the net asset value per share
as reported by the administrators of such funds.

13
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Vaive Partners ineligent Funds
- JA-VP Ghina Naw Cenfury Fund
Francial statemens forthe year endad 31 December 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments (continued)
Impairment

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the date of each
statement of assets and liabilities to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. IF any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of operations as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effeclive interest rate.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognised on a financial asset
carried at amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event

occurring after the write-down, the wrile-down is reversed through the statement of
operations.

Derecognition

The Sub-fund uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses on
derecognition.

Interest Income and expense

Inferest income and expense is recognised in the statement of cperations as it accrues,
using the original effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or
origination date. Interest income and expanse includes the amortisation of any discount or
premium, fransaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an
interest-bearing instrument and its amount at malurity calculated on an effective interest rate
basis.

 Dividend income

Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity securities are recognised in the
statement of operations on the ex-dividend date.

In some cases, the Sub-fund may choose to receive dividends in the form of additional
shares rather than cash. In such cases lhe Sub-fund recognises the dividend income for the

amount of the cash dividend altemative with the corresponding debit treated as an additional
invesiment.

Expenses

All expenses are racagnised in the statement of operations on an accrual basis.

14
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Value Pariners inieligent Funds
= JA=VP China MNew Canfury Fund
Financlal slalements for the paar ended 31 Docember 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash denominated in foreign currencies, represents
cash deposits held at financial institutions. Cash and cash equivalents include short-term
highly liquid investments of sufficient credit quality that are readily converiible to known
amounts of cash and have original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value, Cash
and cash equivalents are held for meeting short-term liquidity requirements, rather than for
investment purposes. All cash and cash equivalents are unrestricted.

Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in the Cayman Islands, the Sub-fund is exempt from
paying taxes on income, profits or capital gains. The Trust has received an undertaking from
the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from tax In the Cayman |slands.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-fund may be subject to withholding tax
imposed in the country of origin. Invesiment income iz recorded net of withholding tax and is
recognised in the statement of operations as Incurred. Refer to note 4 for more details.

Related parties

Far the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be ralatad to the
Sub-fund if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or exercise significant
influence aver the Sub-fund in making financia! and operaling decisions. Related parties
may be individuals or entities.

Offsetting of assets and Nabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presanted in the
siatement of assets and liabilities when, and only when, the Sub-fund has a legal right to
offzet the amounts and it infends aither to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
seltle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presaented on a net basis for net realised gains and change in
realised losses on investments and foreign currencies.

18
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Ve Pariners infeiigent Fumnds
=M=V China MNew Cantury Fund
Finameiel slafemeants for the: pear ended 31 Cosember 2023

Financial instruments and associated risks

The Sub-fund maintains positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments as dictated by its investment management strategy. The Sub-fund's investments
comprise equity securities and participation nate.

The Sub-fund's invesling activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types of
financial risk fo which the Sub-fund is exposed lo are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Asset aliocation is determined by the Manager who manages the distribution of the assets to
achieve the investment objective. Divergence from target asset allocations and the
compasition of the portfolic is monitored by the Manager.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments cutstanding at the date of the statement of
assets and liabilities and the risk management policies employed by the Sub-fund are
discussed below.

Market sk

Markeat risk embodias the potential for both loz2ses and gains and includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk.

The Sub-fund's sirategy on the management of invesiment risk is driven by the Sub-fund's
investment cbjective. The invesiment objective of the Sub-fund is to provida unitholders with
medium to long-term capital appreciation (in USD terms). The Sub-fund's market risk is
managed on a daily hasis by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedures in
place. The Sub+und's overall market positions are monitored on a timely basis by the
Manager.

Details of the Sub-fund’s investment portfolio as at the date of the statement of assets and
liahilities are disclosed in the investment schedule. All individual investments are disclosed
separately.

Currency risk

The Sub-fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in
currencies olher than its functional cumrency. Consequently, the Sub-fund is exposed to risks
that the exchange rate of its cumency relative to cther foreign currencies may change in a
manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Sub-fund’s assels or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the USD.

The Sub-fund is not subject to significant amounts of currency risk because most of the
assets and llabllities are denominated in HKD which is pegged to the USD.

186
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Value Pariners [nladigan! Funds
- JA-VP Chinag Naw Cantury Fund
Furancial shetements for the yeer snded 31 December 2023

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk {continued)

The Sub-fund's total net exposure 1o fluctuations in foreign cumency exchange rates as at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilities was as follows:

Net exposure

2023

USS

Chinese Yuan 228,508
Japanese Yen 117
Singapore dollar 1
MNew Taivran dollar 451,316
BE0,840

The Sub<fund does not expect any significant movements in the HKD/USD exchange rate as
the HKD is pegged to the USD and accordingly the HKD foreign currency assets and
liabilities have been excluded on the above analysis.

Interest rate risk
The majority of the Sub-fund's financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-bearing.

All interesi-bearing financial assets and liabilities mature or reprice in the short-term, no
longer than fwelve months. As a result, the Sub-fund is subject to limited exposure to fair
value intarest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market inferest rates.
Any excess cash and cash equivalents of the Sub-fund are invested in short-term
instruments., .

Price risk

Price risk is the rizk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all
factors affecting all instruments traded in the markel

As the majority of the Sub-fund's financial instruments are carried at fair value with fair value
changes recognised in the staterment of operations, all changes in market conditions will
directly affect net assats resulting from oparations and the financial instruments’ carrying
amounts on the statement of assets and liabilities.

Frice risk iz mitigated by the Manager by constructing a diversified porifolio of insiruments
traded on vardous markets. In addition, price risk may be hedged using derivative financial
instruments such as options. warrants er futures,

17
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Value Pariners inlefigan] Funds
= JA=F China Newr Canfury Fund
Fnanciaf stalpmants for ihe yaar ended 37 Dacamber 2023

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail 1o discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund, Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the
countarparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house,

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation ar commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the
countermparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund's exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement,
Risk relating fo unseitled transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period
involved,

The camrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure on
the statement of assets and liabilities.

Ag at 31 December 2023, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk to
counterparties except to the custodian. Substantially all the financial instruments are cleared
through and held in custody primarily by one major intemational institution. The Sub-fund is
subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfil its cbligations
efther to refurn the Sub-fund's securities or repay amounts owed. The institulion is rated Aa3
par credit ratings issued by Moody's. The Sub-fund does not anticipate any losses as a result
of this concentration.

Liguidity risk

The Sub-fund's Explanatory Memarandum provides for the daily creation and cancellation of
units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unithalder redemptions at any
time.

The Sub-fund invested in a closed-ended fund which is not traded in an organised public
market. The Sub-fund also invested in an equily which is suspended and delisted from
trading as at vear end. These investments generally might be illiquid. As a result, the Sub-
fund might not be able to liquidate these investments quickly at an amaunt closs to its fair
value in arder to meet its liquidity requirements, or to respond to specific events such as
deteriaration in the creditworthiness of any parlicular issuer,

The Sub-fund predominantly invastad in listad equity securities which are considared to be
readily realisable as they are all listed on major stock exchanges.

Derivative contracts

Asg at 31 December 2023, the Sub-fund's holding in participation note as specified in the
following table:

18
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Vaiue Parfners injalipen! Funds
= Ji=VP Ching New Canlury Fund
Finamzfed stadements for the pear ended 371 Decamber 2023

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Derivative contracts (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Amgunts ingladed it the
statemant of operations
Change in
Long exposure Realised  unrealised
Type af conrac! Expiration Urrderiying Fair vaiue ganlss galioss
Us$ uss LI5§
14 December  Kwelchow Moutal Co
Pariicipation note 202 Ltd A Shares 145,705 . 2892

The participation note disclosed above is the only derivative contract that the Sub-fund
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2023,

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Mone of the financial assets and financial liabilities is offset in the statement of financial
position.

The enforceable master netting arrangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
staternent of assets and liabilities. This is because they create a right of set-off of recognised
amaounts that is enforceable only following on event of default, insolvency or bankruptoy of
the Sub-fund er its counterparties, in addilion, the Sub-fund and its counterparties do not
intend te sefile on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabiliies simultanaausly.

The gross amounts of recognised financial assets and financial liabilities and their net
amounts presented in the statement of assels and liabiliies have bean measured in the
statement of assets and liabilities at fair value.

As at 31 December 2023

Financial assefs subject to enforceable master netting arrangements

Gros s
e
o recogrsad Nat amamnts
francial o fnancal Amgunis
Grogs Fabtas choal AFTHE & Friarceal
amauvis i praziied in (REUTRAE
of rpcoprised satermen! Hop stelevoen! (waivcing Cazh
firsan Gl of aazels Lo of assels s NGE-CARH callaimeal al
BRI Mabwithes labéldes colelern} recehved mmaual
] 3 4 ] 2 3
Derhaive faanclal Instruments:
- Paricipation maks
- Coumarparty A 145,705 - 145,708 - B 143,705

18

128/281



(a)

(b)

(c)

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Ve Partrers fnieBipent Funds
= A=V Ching New Canlury Fund
Finanoia! stotemants for the pear anded 27 Decamber 2023

Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains In the Cayman Islands as the Trust has received an
undertaking from the Govemor in Cabiret of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all lecal
income, profits and capital gains taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is
included in these financial statements.

The Sub-fund reccgnisas the tax banafits of uncertain tax positions only where the position is
mare likely than not {Le. greater than 50 percent) to be susiained assuming examination by a
taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whather a tax
position has met the recognifion threshold, the Sub-fund must presume that the position will
be examined by the appropriate taxing authorily that has full knowledge of all relevant
information. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition thresheld is
measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognise in the Sub-fund's financial
statements, Income tax and related inferest and penalties would be recognised by the Sub-
fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax positions were deemed to not
meet the more likely than not threshold.

The Sub-fund analyses ali open tax yvears for all major taxing jursdictions. Open tax years
are those that are open for exam by taxing autharities, as defined by the Statute of
Limitations in each jurisdiction. The Sub-fund identifies its major tax jurisdictions as the
Cayman Islands and foreign jurisdictions where the Sub-fund makes significant investments.
The Sub-fund has no examinaticns by taxing autherities in progress.

Management has analysed the Sub-fund’s tax positions, and has concluded that no liability
for unrecognised tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions. Further,
management is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the
total amounts of unrecognised tax benefits will significantly changs in the next twelve
maonths.

The Profits Tax Exemption for Offshore Funds Ordinance (“the COffshore Funds Ordinance”)
came into effect on 10 March 2006 and has besn amendad on 17 July 2015, Under the
Offshore Funds Ordinance, exemption from Hong Kong profits tax is granted to non-resident
parsons in respect of profits from specified transactions carried out through or arranged by
certain specified persons in any year of assessment on or after 1 April 1986.

Effective from 1 April 2019, the Inland Revenue (Profits Tax Exemption for Funds)
{Amendment) Ordinance (collectively referred as "the Funds Exemption Ordinancas”)
provides profits tax exemption for funds whether or not the central managemenl and control
of the funds is exercised in Hong Kong subject fo certain conditions. The Manager believes
that they have implemented steps to enable the Sub-fund to meet the exemption critaria
under the Funds Exemption Ordinances. If the Sub-fund does nol meel the exemption
criteria under the Funds Exemption Ordinances, the Sub-fund is exposed to Hong Kong
profits tax at a rate of 16.5% in respect of any profits which arise in or are derived from Hong
Kong and which are not capital profits or exempt profits if it is treated as carrying on a trade
or business in Hong Kong either on its own account or through any person as an agent,
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Taxation (continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager has made certain assumptions and
used variocus estimates conceming the tax exposure which is dependent on what might
happen in the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual
resulis.

The Sub-fund invests in derivative instruments linked {o "A” shares, issued by one or more
Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors ("QFlls") or their affiliates as well as “A" shares of
companies listed in the PRC, via the Manager's QF|l quota.

On 14 November 2014, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the "MoF"), the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the "CSRC™ jointly issued the "Motice on temporary exemption of Corporate
Income Tax on capital gaing darived from tha transfer of eguily investment assets such as
PRC domestiic stocks by QFIl and RQFI" (the "Notice"). According to the Notice, amongst
other things, QFlls and RQFIls, which do not have an establishment or place of business in
the PRC or have an establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in the PRC
is not effectively connected with such establishment, will b lermporarily exempt from
corporate income tax on gains derived from the transfer of PRC equity investment assets
(including China "A" shares) effective from 17 November 2014, Accordingly, as at 31
December 2023, the Sub-fund had not made any provision for the {ax on capital gains on
denvatives instruments linked to "A” shares and China "A”" shares on or after 17 November
2014 basad on the Notice.

The Sub-fund also directly invests in “B" shares of companies listed in the PRC for
subscription by foreign investors and may be subject to PRC withholding tax of 10% on
dividend income. A 10% withholding tax may also be payable an the capital gains derived
from the sale of “B" shares. Under current PRC tax laws, gains derived from the transfar of
shares of PRC companies by non-residents should be subject to a withholding tax of 10%,
unlass axempt undar relevant tax treaties. The SAT has remained silent on the collection of
withheolding tax for capital gains and until further clanfication is issued by the SAT, the
Manager considers that there is significant uncertainty in respect of whether the Sub-fund
hiag any liability and the extent of such lability with respect to tax on capital gains derived
from the sale of PRC "B" shares, In making this assessmaeant, the Managar has cansidered (i)
the current position of the SAT, (i) the absence of a withholding machanism of the relevant
tax and {iii) current market practice, Accordingly, as at 31 December 2023, the Sub-fund had
not made any provision for the tax on capital gains on "B" shares based on the above
judgments made by the Manager.

The Manager will continually reassess the withholding income {ax provisioning approach on
an or-going basis taking into account any recent development in the market.
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Related party transactions

The Sub-fund entered into the following material related party transactions for the year. All
such transactions wene entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commearcial tarms.

Investment management fees

The Manager, an investment management company incorporated in British Virgin Islands,
has implementad the investment strategy as specified in the Explanatory Memorandum.

Under the Investment Management Agreemert, the Manager receives a management fee
maonthly in arrears at an annual rate of 1.6% of the net assets on each valuation day as
defined in the Explanatory Memorandum. An investment management fee of US$87,236
was charged to the statement of operations during the year, Investmant managemenl fees
payable of US$6,264 ig included in liabilities as at 31 December 2023.

Performance fees

Under the Investment Management Agresment, the Manager is also antitled to a
performance fee, calculated at a high-on-high basis, if the net asset value per unit as at the
last valuation day of a calendar quarter (prior to the accrual of any performance fee for that
calendar quarier but including any distribulion declared or paid in respect of the relavant
performance periods) exceeds the higher of:

(i) the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the last valuation day in the
last calendar quarter in respect of which a performance fee was paid to the Manager in
respect of the Sub-fund, after payment of such performance fee; and

(i)  the initial offer price at which the units were first offered.

The rate of performance fees payable is 15% and is calculated by multiplying this fee rate by
the product of the excess of the net asset value per unit (calculated as stated above) and the
average of the number of units in issue immediately after each valuation day in the relevant

calendar quarter. No perfiormance fees were charged to the statement of operations during
the year. Mo parformance fees payable as at 31 December 2023.
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Related party transactions (continued)

Trustes and fund administration fees

The Trustee is entitled to monthly trustee and fund administration fees which are determinad
based on the monthly net asset value of the Sub-fund as below:

Trustes and
fund
adrminisiration
feg
QEr &N
shown as % of
net assef value
Net assst value

First US$150 million 0.135%
MNext USEE50 milllion 0.13%
Thereatfter 0.125%

The trustee and fund administration fees are subject to a8 monthly minimum of US$4,500.

Trustee and fund administration fees of US54, 146 wers chargad to the statement of
operations during the year. Trustee and fund administration fees payables of US$4,500 is
included in liabilities as at 31 December 2023,

Balances/fransactions with the group company of the Trustee

Duwring the year, the Custodian of the Sub-fund, HSBC Inslitutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, which is a group company of the Trustes of the Sub-fund, charged fransaction fees
of UE%1,682 for handling each purchase or sale of investments.

During the year, the Sub-fund utilised the services of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited ("HSBC®), which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, in
its purchase and sale of investmants. Details of such transactions exacuted and fees paid
are set out below:

Valie of fransactions Commission and other
aexecuted through HSBC fees paid to HEBC
LS% Uss

Year 2023 - -
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Related party transactions (continued)

The Sub-fund maintains bank accounts with HSBC. The Sub-fund may also maintain cash
deposits which were held as collateral for transactions involving borrowed securities with
HSBC during the year. No cash deposits and securities were held or pledged as collateral
as al 31 December 2023. Other information relating to the transactions/balances with HSBC
is sel out below:

2023

uss

Investments held with custodian 4,378,275

Bank accounts
Bank balance 359,802
Interest income 2,128
Bank charges {571)
Professional foes (6,850)
Units in issue

Number of

units

2023

As al 1 January 10,476
Izsue of units 10
Redemption of units (875)
As al 31 December 8,611

The rights attaching to each unit are as follows:

The holders of the units have the right fo receive notice of, attend and vote at meetings of the
Sub-fund. The holder of each such unit has the right to one vate for each such unit
registered in his name. The holders are entitled to receive all dividends declared and paid by
the Sub-fund. Upon winding up, the halders are entitled to a retum of capital based on the
net assets value per unit of the Sub-fund.

All distributable profits of the Sub-fund will be accumulated and no distribution of income will
be made from the Sub-fund, unless otharwise determined by the Manager.
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Soft commission arrangements

The Manager andlar any company associated with it and its delegates may enter into sofl
dollarsicommigsgion sharing arrangements with brokers through which brokerage transaclions
are entered on behalf of clients under management. The Manager may recelve, and is
entitled to retain, research products and services (known as soft dollar benefits) which are of
damonstrable benefit to the Sub-fund (as may be permitted under applicable rules and
regulations) from brokers and other persons through whom invastment transactions ara
carried out (the "brokers"). Soft dollars may be received from them provided that the quality
of transaction execution is consistent with best exacution standards and brokarage rates are
nat in excess of the customary full-service brokerage rates.

Such soft dollar benefits may include research and advisory services; economic and political
analysis, portfolio analysis, including valuation and performance measurement; market
analysis, data and quotalion services and sofiware incidental to the above goods and
services; clearing and custodian services and invesiment related publications. For the
avoidance of doubt, soft dollar benefits do not include travel, accommodation, entertainmeant,
general administrative goods and services, general office equipment or premises,
membership fees, employee salaries or direct money payments.

The Manager considers many judgemental factors deemed ralevant in detarmining whether a
broker provides best execution. In general, investment orders are allocated to brokers based
on the range and overall quality of services offered by the broker. The core factors in
determining the quality of services are the execution performance and capabilily of the
broker. Other factors, such as the quality and quantity of research and investment ideas
offered, access to potential investes companies and commission rate charges, would also be
taken into consideration. Soft dollar benefits received from brokers should not be a
determinant factor on allocating orders among brokers. The Manager has implemented
policies and procedures to ensure that transactions executed with brokers pursuant to a soft
dallar commission sharing arangament are conducted in the bast execution standard. Saoft
dollars benefits received by the Manager are used to facilitate in the Manager’s investment
management process, such benefits assist the Manager in fulfilling its overall duly lo clients
and may be used in servicing any or all of the Manager's client accounts over which the
Manager exercises investment discretion. The Manager does not usually attempt to
allocate/attribute the soft dollar benefits to individual client account, as goods and services
obiained may be baneficial to all clients in general, including those client accounts that do not
generate credit to acquire the soft dollar benefils.

Faor the year ended 31 December 2023, the Manager obtained research and advisory
zarvices; economic and political analysis; portiolio and market analysis, data and quotation
services and software incidental to the above goods and services; and investment related
publications through =oft dollar arrangements on {ransactions amounting to US$1 495,024
(2022: US$4,526,137). Commission which amounted to US$2,103 (2022: US$6,793) is paid
for these transactions.
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Fair value

The Sub-fund's investments are carried at fair value on the statement of assets and liabilties.
The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair value due to
the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The Sub-fund utilises various methods to measura the fair value of its investments on a
recurming basis. Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification
Tapic 820 {FASE ASC Topic B20) defines fair value, establishes a consistent framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements.
FASE ASC Topic 820, among other things, reguires the Sub<fund to maximise the use of
obzervable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable input when measuring fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

FASE ASC Topic 820 specifieas a hierarchy of valuation technigues based on whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. The Sub-fund utilises
valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Sub-fund determines fair value based on
assumptions that market participants weuld use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal
or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions in fair
value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between cbservable
and unchservable inputs, which are categorised in one of the following levels:

- Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instruments.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similarinstruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considerad less than
active; or other valuation techniguas in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

= Level 3 Inputs thal are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the
valuation technigue includes inputs not based on ohservable data and the uncbservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation. This categery includes
instrumeants that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments but for which
significant unobservable adjustmenls or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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Fair value {continued)

Determination of fair value

The Sub-fund measures fair value using the procedures set out below for the investments
measured at fair value.

When available and for quoted investments, the Sub-fund generally uses quoted market
prices in active markets to determine falr value, and classifies such items in Level 1.

In some cases where a market price is available and relevant to measura the fair value of a
particular investment, the Sub-fund will calculate the fair value of such investment by
reference tc such market price, in which case the items are classified in Level 2.

If quoted market prices are not available, falr value is based upon internally developad
valuation technigues that use, where possible, curent market-based or independently
sourced market parameters, such as interest rates, currency rates, option volatilities, etc.
Items valued using such intemally generated valuation fechnigues are classified according to
the lowest level input or value driver that is significant o the valuation. Thus, an item may be
classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant inputs that are readily
observable, including market comparahbles of listed companies.

Items measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table presents for each of the fair value hierarchy levels the Sub-fund's
investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31 December 2023,

2023

Witk

Quoted Quoted significant

markel observable  unobservable

price Inputs inputs
{Laval 1) {Level 2] {Level 3)* Total
uss uss uss Uss

Assets

Equity securities 4,232 570 - - 4,232,570
Participation note - 145,705 - 145,705
Total 4,232 570 145,705 - 4 378275

There wera no transfers batween Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The investment in Real Gold Mining Lid. (166,500 shares) as at 37 December 2023 is

classified as level 3 investments since there [ no abservable inputs from the markel. It is
suspended and delisted shares and the managernenl eslimale thal the fair valve is

considered as zero,
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Financial highlights

Operating performance per unit:
2023
Uss
Met asset value per unit as at 1 January 563.04
Income from investment operations:
Met investment loss (9.35)
Met realised and unrealised losses on investments and
foreign exchange losses (B4.58)
Total loss from investment operation s | {_T_r' _3_.511_ }
MNet asset value per unit as at 31 December 48913
Total return:
Total retum before parformance fee (13.13%)
Performance fee i
Total return after perfformance fee (13.13%)
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets:
Met investment loss befare peformance fee (1.68%)
Performance fee 5
Met investment loss after performance fea {1.68%)
Ratio of expenses to average net assets:
Expenses before performance fee 4.35%
Performance fee &
Total expensas 4.35%
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Financial highlights {(continued)

Met Invesiment loss from investment operations per unit is calculated based on average
number of units outstanding of the Sub-fund for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Total refurn is calculated by comparing the anding net asset value ("NAV") per unit to the
beginning NAY per unit. An individual invesior's retum may vary from these based on the
timing of capilal transactions.

Expense ratio is calculated for the Sub-fund as a whole. An individual investor's ratios may
vary from these rafios based on the timing of capital transactions.

Indemnification

In the normal course of business, the Sub-fund enfers into contracts that contain a variety of

representations which provide general indemnifications. The Sub-fund's maximum exposure
under these agreements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be against

the Sub-fund that have not yet occumred. However, based on experience, the Sub-fund
expects the risk of loss to be remate.

Subsequent events

These financial statements were approved by management on 26 April 2024, Subsequent
events have been evaluated through this date.

From the period from 1 January 2024 to 28 April 2024, the Sub-fund did not receive any
subscription but redemption of 223 units which amounted to US3105,530.
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2025
4,881,535.52 695,960,519
54,541.24 7,775,945
4,826,994.28 688,184,574
9,181
525.76 74,958
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2025
14,623,428 11,854,704
18,893,318 15,302,777
268,778,607 217,889,460
2020 12 31 11,854,704
2021 12 31 11,854,704
2022 12 31 11,854,704
2023 12 31 11,854,704
2024 12 31 11,854,704
VPGL
VPGL

Cheah Cheng Hye

Ho Man Kei

So Chun Ki

Louis
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2024 12 31
2024 2023

11 1,515 27,846 2,059 37,844
19 30,599 562,410 43,747 804,070
12 9,002 167,111 10,480 192,622
13 1,251,644 23,005,217 1,388,300 25,516,954
6,945 127,649 6,953 127,796
17 2,304 42,348 2,151 39,535
1,302,099 23,932,580 1,453,690 26,718,822
25.3 26,101 479,736 21,502 395,207
13 826 15,182 3,293 60,525
14 3,660 67,271 3,816 70,138
12,141 223,152 14,922 274,266
19,634 360,873 42,953 789,476
15 73,642 1,353,540 38,239 702,833
136,004 2,499,754 124,725 2,292,446
25.3 284,648 5,231,830 579,504 10,651,284
22,426 412,190 3,271 60,121
18 2,848 52,346 3,273 60,158
22,819 419,413 16,941 311,376
20 12,139 223,115 12,905 237,194
344,880 6,338,894 615,894 11,320,132
(208,876) (3,839,141) (491,169) (9,027,686)
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2024 12 31
2024 2023

1,731 31,816 1,986 36,503

20 18,559 341,114 30,698 564,229
20,290 372,930 32,684 600,732

1,072,933 19,720,509 929,837 17,090,404

16 53,768 988,256 53,768 988,256
1,019,165 18,732,253 876,069 16,102,148

1,072,933 19,720,509 929,837 17,090,404

42 2025 30

10 42
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2024 12 31
2024 2023

5 36,485 670,594 44,726 822,064
(12,588) (231,367) (15,700) (288,566)
23,897 439,227 29,026 533,498
6 249,485 4,585,534 240,433 4,419,159
273,382 5,024,761 269,459 4,952,656
7 (173,506) (3,189,040) (187,031) (3,437,630)
19 (13,148) (241,660) (17,384) (319,518)
8 (85,993) (1,580,551) (81,915) (1,505,598)
(272,647) (5,011,252) (286,330) (5,262,745)
145,088 2,666,717 12,248 225,118
G371 (6,819) (1,125) (20,678)
9 144,717 2,659,898 11,123 204,441
145,452 2,673,408 (5,748) (105,648)
20 (2,506) (46,060) (1,626) (29,886)
142,946 2,627,347 (7.374) (135,534)
10 150 2,757 548 10,072
143,096 2,630,104 (6,826) (125,462)
143,096 2,630,104 (6,826) (125,462)
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2024 12 31
2023
.. 53,768 _ 988,256 _ _ _ _ _ . .. ._.-. 882,895 _ 16,227,610 _ 936,663 _ 17,215,866
(6.826)  (125,462) (6,826)  (125,462)
7.1 12,018 220,891 12,018 220,891
7.1 (12,018)  (220,891) (12,018)  (220,891)
2023 12 31
2024
.. 03,768 988,256 . ... ... 876,069 _ 16,102,148 _ _ 929,837 _ 17,090,404
143,096 2,630,104 143,09 2,630,104
7.1 (994)  (18,270) (994) (18,270)
7.1 994 18,270 994 18,270
2024 12 31
53,768 988,256 1,019,165 18,732,253 1,072,933 19,720,509
10 42
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2024 12 31
2024 2023
22 (261,252) (4,801,812) (290,583)  (5,340,916)
1,437 26,412 6,767 124,377
3) (55)

(259,818) (4,775,455) (283,816)  (5,216,538)

11 12 (787) (14,465) (694) (12,756)

(240,684) (4,423,772) (120,957)  (2,223,190)

548,215 10,076,192 156,935 2,884,465

3,888 71,461 1,570 28,857

310,632 5,709,416 36,854 677,377

(15,411) (283,254) (18,580) (341,500)

(15,411) (283,254) (18,580) (341,500)

35,403 650,707 (265,542)  (4,880,662)

38,239 702,833 303,777 5,583,421

4 74

73,642 1,353,540 38,239 702,833

45,985 845,204

27,529 505,983 17,176 315,695

128 2,353 244 4,485

20,819 382,653

73,642 1,353,540 38,239 702,833

a
2023 12 31 531,313,000
25.7
10 42
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2023 30
2023 30
30
2.1
HKFRSs
HKFRSs
2024 12 31

2024 12 31

43

HKICPA

209,000,000
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2023

VG 1110

2025

491,000,000



2024
2024
HKAS 21
HKFRS 18
2.2
2.3
20 50

2.4

HKAS 28

HKAS

2025
HKFRS HKFRS

2027

HKFRS HK IFRIC
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FVPL

FVPL
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2.11

2.12

2.13
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2.15

2.16
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2.18

2.19
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3.2

4.1

12 31 2023 12 31

10

2024 12 31

2023 12 31

2024 12 31
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2024 12 31
18,682 6,525 6 1,512
1,466 35 10 150
12,021 93 3 363
21,102 10,613 4 1,269
699 6,888 5 379
6,495 (7,619) 2 23
60,465 16,535
2023 12 31
26,720 (34) 5 1,335
20,293 9,428 5 1,486
7,044 363 5 370
20,485 2,008 1 226
74,542 11,855
2023 65,399,876 2023 8,412,743
2024 12 31 100
2023 50
654,000 2023 42,000
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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13

2024

20

1,249,992,528

MSCI

2023

20
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2023 1,384,850,135

MSCI

2024 2023

59,541 79,241
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2024 2023

45,985
32

56 791

27,469 16,616

1 5

20,853

101 8

73,644 38,273
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HKFRS
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
14
2024 12 31
73,642,000 2023 38,239,000
2024 2023
26,101 21,502
1,252,470 1,391,593
3,660 3,816
19,634 42,953
2 4,928 2,037 4,693
73,642 17,420 20,819
1,352,213 23,296 4,928 1,430,515 69,625 4,693
(284,648) (579,504)
(22,426) (1,731) (3,271) (1,986)
(2,848) (3,273)
(22,819) (16,941)
(13,824) (19,450) (15,411) (33,273)
(284,648) (61,917) (21,181) (579,504) (38,896) (35,259)
1,067,565 (38,621) (16,253) 851,011 30,729 (30,566)

4.2
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31 SFO
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 SFO
4.3
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
13
453,227 555,949 1,046 453,258 556,995
799,243 834,598 799,242 834,598
453,227 555,949 799,243 835,644 1,252,470 1,391,593
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2023 12 31

1,034 5,702
(4,668)
(965) (965)
(69) (69)

4,668,000

965,000
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2024 2023
35,611 44,438
296 288
578
36,485 44,726
2024 2023
1,381 6,095
3,888 1,575
243,693 232,451
523 312
249,485 240,433
2024 2023
148,477 162,299
10,298
19,467
4,409
(994)
12,018
2,147 2,416
173,506 187,031
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7.1

2024 2023
2023 2023 12 31
2024 4.55 97,959

3.47 (9,250)
2024 12 31 4.67 88,709
2024 12 31 88,709,000 2023 97,959,000
88,709,000 2023 89,334,000 4.67 2023 4.57

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 2023

2025 14 5.87 20,500 20,500
2026 22 4.14 60,209 60,209
2026 12 11 5.55 8,000 8,000
2027 10 3.47 9,250

2024 12 31
15 39 2023 12 36
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2026 2028 2023 2024 2026
2024 2023
4,409
2024 2023
1,618 1,709
11 12 2,719 4,714
953 1,078
4,120 4,374
IT 21,100 19,072
5,226 4,544
1,172 789
2,001 2,252
2,175 2,639
3,077 1,188
199 168
25,867 18,013
13,715 19,254
25.5

1,157 1,919
1,344 202

85,993 81,915
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2024 2023
(77,979) (42,235)
223,067 54,483
371) (1,125)
144,717 11,123
2024 12 31 16.5 2023
2024 2023
3
3
17 (153) (548)
(150) (548)
2024 2023
142,946 (7.,374)
23,586 (1,217)
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(43,096) (15,102)
17,657 10,786
167 (2,691)
1,536 7,676
(150) (548)
2024 12 31
81,289,069 2023 71,981,395
13,412,696 2023 11,876,930
11
2023
17,356 1,544 18,272 1,638 38,810
(15,736) (1,358) (15,988) (1,638) (34,720)
1,620 186 2,284 4,090
2023 12 31
1,620 186 2,284 4,090
397 97 173 667
(1,393) (73) (1,232) (2,698)
624 210 1,225 2,059
2023 12 31
2024
17,753 1,641 18,445 1,638 39,477
(17,129) (1,431) (17,220) (1,638) (37,418)
624 210 1,225 2,059
2024 12 31
624 210 1,225 2,059
787 787
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371) (74) (820) (66) (1,331)
253 136 405 721 1,515

2024 12 31
17,753 1,641 18,445 2,425 40,264
(17,500) (1,505) (18,040) (1,704) (38,749)
253 136 405 721 1,515

12
2023

32,990 7,500 40,490
(28,021) (28,021)
4,969 7,500 12,469

2023 12 31
4,969 7,500 12,469
27 27
(2,016) (2,016)
2,980 7,500 10,480

2023 12 31

2024

33,017 7,500 40,517
(30,037) (30,037)
2,980 7,500 10,480

2024 12 31
2,980 7,500 10,480
(1,388) (1,388)
1,592 7,500 9,092
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2024 12 31
33,017 7,500 40,517
(31,425) (31,425)
1,592 7,500 9,092
2024 2023
1,046
441,206 555,949
12,021
453,227 556,995
523 2,191
315,388 180,365
13.1 483,332 652,042
799,243 834,598
1,252,470 1,391,593
1,251,644 1,388,300
826 3,293
1,252,470 1,391,593
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

25.2

25.2
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8,100
13 6,700 2023 400
2023 12 31
2024 12 31
9,882,000
2023 12 31
71,950,000

39,162,000

2,000

14 3,600
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4,100 2023 46,000
1,600
2024 12 31
420,201,600
25.7



13.1

2023
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2024 2023
18,682 26,720
442,041 564,511

12,021

21,102 20,293
699 7,044
6,495 20,485
749,964 751,902
1,466 638
1,252,470 1,391,593

2024 2023

48 41

2024 2023
1,149,063 1,575,751
(47,215) (88,421)
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30

2024 12 31

31

2023 12 31

90
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25.2

2024 2023
46
3,660 3,770
3,660 3,816

2024 2023
917 1,224
2,743 2,592
3,660 3,816
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2023
2023 12 31
2024
2024 12 31

2024 12 31
2023 15,000,000
2023 0.1
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2024 2023
45,985
27,529 17,176
20,819
128 244
73,642 38,239
2024 2023
336 387
28,602 9,372
35 1
1,202 10
92
292 4
440 20,860
42,643 7,605
73,642 38,239
11,409,459 3,893,318 11,855 41,913 53,768
15,000,000
3,893,318 2023 3,893,318 0.1
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17
2023 1,603
10 548
2023 12 31 2024 2,151
10 153
2024 12 31 2,304
2024 2023
12 2,304 2,151
18
2024 2023
30 2,800 3,231
60 48 42
2,848 3,273
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
19
2024 2023
93,799 58,153

35,646
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20

12 31
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93,799 93,799
(50,052) (32,668)
(13,148) (17,384)
(63,200) (50,052)

30,599 43,747

HKFRS 16

2024 2023
43,603 24,911
35,646
(15,411) (18,580)
2,506 1,626
30,698 43,603

2024 2023

12,139 12,905
12,995 12,139

5,564 18,559

18,559 30,698

30,698 43,603
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21
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
22
2024 2023
142,946 7,374

(1,381) (6,095)

(3,888) (1,575)

2,719 4,714

13,148 17,384

2,506 1,626

(145,088) (12,248)

8 1,885

(4,599) 13,703

156 484

2,724 (47,302)

(294,856) (117,261)

18,900 (35,998)

(425) (707)

5,878 (1,819)

(100,000)

(261,252) (290,583)
23

23.1
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
24
2024 12 31 IT
5,940,000 2023 7,920,000
2024 2023
1,980 1,980
1,980 1,980
1,980 1,980

1,980

5,940 7,920
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2024 2023
15,788 17,729
6,713
48 54
15,836 24,496

13.1

2024 2023
441,237 481,453
105,684
129 471
370 1,126

12,021

74,500
38,913 40,078
147 379



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

101,387 94,048
5,654 12,832
412 1,227
2 2
1,028 2,064
109 963
33,722 33,150
13.1
34,659 31,223
13.1
39,856
13.1
116,111 47,952
13.1
66
13.1
250,865 319,014
13.1
47,975 75,095
13.1

167,729
29,364
1,252,470 1,390,547
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25.3
25.4
2024 12 31
243,693,000 2023 232,451,000

25.5

2024 12 31

3,600,000 2023 3,600,000

9,575,000 2023 15,654,000
25.6
25.7
2023 12 31

412,201,000
71,950,000
39,162,000
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26.

2025 42,927,682
1.534
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asscts — properties
Intangible assets

Investments

Other assets

Deferred tex assets

Current assets

Amounts due from related companies
Investments

Fees recefvable

Prepayments and other receivables
Amounts recelvable an zales of investments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to related companies
Accrued honus

Distribution fee expenses payable
Other payables and accrued expenses
Lease linbilities

Net current liabilities

Note

1
19
12
13

17

25.3
13
14

15

25-3

20

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
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2024 2023
HESooo HK%ooo0
L&l15 2,059
Ju.599 43747
0,062 10,480
1,251,044 1,388,300
6,945 6,953
2,304 2,151
1,302,099 1,453,600
26,101 21,502
826 5,205
3,660 3,816
12,141 14,922
19,034 42,953
73,542 48,239
136,004 124,725
284,648 579,504
22,420 3,271
2,848 3,273
2u,H19 16,041
12,139 12,905
344,880 615,804

(491,169)

(208,876)

The notes on pages 10 to 42 are an integral part of these Enancial statements,

-G-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
Note 2024 2025
HES 000 HES 000
Non-current labilities
Aecrued bonus 1,751 1,986
Lease liahilities 20 18,550 30,608
20,200 32,684
Net assets 1,072,433 020,837
Equity .
Issued equity 16 53,768 53,768
Retained earnings 1,018,165 876,060
Total equity 1,072,933 929,837

The financial statements on pages 5 lo £2 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2025 and
were signed on its behalf,

5O Chun Ki Louis
Director

The notes on pages 10 to 42 are an integral part of these financial statements.
> T -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023
HESono HES% ooo
Income
Fee incone 5 afi,a85 44,726
Distribution fee expenses {12,588) (15,700
Net fee ineome aj3.807 20,026
Other income & 24y,485 240,433
Total net income 273,382 269,459
Expenses
Compensation and benefit expenses 7 (173,506) {187,031)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets — propecties 14 (13,148) {17,384)
Uther expenses 8 (85.993) (B1,915)
Total expenses {272,647) (286,330)
Met gains on investments 145,088 12,248
Others (az) (1225)
Other gains - net 9 144,717 11,123
Operating profit/{losses) (after other gains) 145,452 {5,748)
Mnanee costs 20 {2,506) (1,626)
Profit/ (loss) before tax 142,946 (7.374)
Tax eredit 10 150 348
Profil/{loss) for the ycar 145,090 {6,826)

Profit/{loss) and total comprehensive income,/ (loss)
for the year 143,096 (5,828)

The notes on pages 10 to 42 are an integral part of these financial statements.

-5-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Issued Revaluation Retained
Note equity reserve earnings Total
HE® zoo HKg'o00 HKSo00 HES%000

As at 1 January zozz 53,768 - 882,R05 935,663

—— B L L L] ——— s i

Loss for the vear - . (6,826) (6,826)

Transactions with owners

in their capacity as

OWILCES
Capital contribution - share-

based compensation 71 - 12,008 - 12,018
Capital contribution -

repurchase of equity

instrument 7.1 - {12,018} - (12,018)

Total transactions with
owners in their capacity
as pwners = - - -

= e e ——

As at 31 December 2023
and 1 January =024 53,768 - 876,060 20,897

e e mmmme mmsmsemsmsmmse e e e il ey e . —m—

Profit for the year - - 143,096 143,006

Transactions with owners

in their capacity as

owners
Net reversal of share-based

compensation 7.1 - {994)
Reversal of recharge of share-

based compensation expenscs

by ultimate holding company 7.1 . 994 - 994

L]
—
&
=

Total transactions with
owners in their capacity
A5 OWners =t o - =

As at 31 December 2024 53,768 . 1,016,165 1,072,033

ETEEEENEETTT 20 O T————————= | EEESsaaaammsees

The notes on pages 10 to 42 are an integral part of these financial statements,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
Note 2024 2023
HK%ooo0 HEK%ooo
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in aperations 22 (261,252) (290,.583]
Interest received 1,437 6,767
Tax paid 3 -
Net cash used in operating aclivities {250,81R) (=83,816)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assels 11,12 {787) {694)
Purchase of investments (240,684) {120,957)
Disposal of investments 548,215 156,935
Dividends received from investments 4,888 1,570
Net eash generated from investing activitics 310,632 46,854
Cash flows from finaneing actvitics
Principal and interest elements of lease payments (15,411) (18,5580)
Net cash used in financing activitics (15,411} (18,580)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 35.403 {265,542)
Cash and easl: equivalents at beginning of the year 38,230 303.777
Exchange difference - 4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the ycar 73,642 38,239
Analysis of balances of cush and cash equivalents
Inwvestments in Money market instruments 45,085 =
Cash at banks and in hand 27,529 17,176
Deposits with brokers 128 244
Short-term bank deposits . 20,810

73,642 98,290

Mote (a):
Significant non-cash transactions:
During the vear ended 31 December 2023, there were purchases of investments of total HK$531,313,000

from the related company, Valie Partners Hong Kong Limited, settling through the amount due to a related
company. For details please refer to note 25.7.

The notes on pages 10 to 42 arc an integral part of these financial statements.
- 9 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zoz4

1 General information

Value Pariners Limited (the "Company”) is 2 limited liahility company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The address of its registered office and its principal place of business are Comrmerce
House, Wickhams Cay 1, P.0. Box 3140, Road Town, Tortela, VG110, British Virgin 1slands and
43rd Floor, The Center, 99 Queen's Roud Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company is licensed to carry out activities of dealing in secorities, dealing in futures contracts,
advising on sceurities, advising on fulures eontracts and asset management under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Company principally provides investment management
services to investment funds and managed accounts,

Prior to 30 March 2023, the Company was wholly owned by Value Partners Hong Kong Limited,
the then immediate holding company, while Velue Paciners Group Limited was the ultimate holding
company. Value Partners Group Linited is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Fong Limited. Effective from 30 March 2023, Value Partuers Hong Kong Limited tansferred 100%
equity interest of the Company to Value Partners Group Limited and therefore, Value Partners
Group Limited becomes the immediate and ulimate holding company of the Company since then.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dellars (“HES ooo"), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Beard of Directors on 30
April 2025,

z Summuary of material accounting policies

‘The materizl accounting policies applied in the prepavation of these financial statements are set out
below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial staternents of the Company have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financinl Reporting Stenderds (“HEFRSs") issued by the Hong Xong Institube of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments,

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with 11EFRSE requires the nse of accounting
estimates, It also requires the directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the
Company's aceounting policies. ‘The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 3 below.

At 91 December 2024, the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HE$zo09
million (2023: HEK$49: million). Value Partners Group Limited, the immediate and vltimate
holding company, has confirmed its intention to provide sullicient financial support to the
Company so as to enable the Company to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to enable
the Company to continue its operation for the fereseeable future. The Divectors believe the
Company will continue as a going concern. Consequently, the Dircetors have prepared the financial
statements on 4 going concern basis.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing § January 2024:

=10-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo24

Summary of material accounting policies {Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Company (Continued)

= Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current liabilitics with
covenants — Amendmonts to [HKAS 1

(b) New standards issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2024 and have not been carly adopted

+  Amendments to HEAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability {effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2025}

=  Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments -
Amendments to HKFRS g and HEFRS 7 [effuctive for snnual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2026)

= HEFRES 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Finanecial Statements (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January »o27)

There are no HEFRS or HEK{IFRIC) Interpretations Lhat ave not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that veting or similar rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to
administrztive tasks only, and the relevant activites are directed by means of contractual
wrangements. A structured entity often has restricted activities and a narrow and well defined
objective, such as to provide investment opportunities for investors by passing on risks and rewards
associated with the assets of the structured entity. Consequently, investment funds are considered
as "structured entities”,

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influsnce but not conlrol or joint
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 0% of the voting rights.

The Company has invested in certain investment funds that it manages. As an investment manager,
the Company may put scod capital in investment funds that it manages in order to facilitate the
fund launch. The purpose of seed capital is to ensure that the investment funds can have o
reasonable starting fund size to operate and to build track record. The Company may subsequently
vary the holding of these seed capital investments depending on the market conditions and various
factors. The Company has applied the measurement exermnption within HKAS 28 *Investments in
associates and joint wventures® for mutual fonds, unit trusts and similar entities and such
investments are elassified as financial asgets at fair value through profit or less.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economie environment in which it operates (the “functionzl currency”). The

financial statenents are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

=11=
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VALUE PAERTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Summary of material accounting policies {Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign cwrency transsetions are trenslated into the functional currency uvsing the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign cxchange gains and
losses resulling from the settlement of such trnsuctions and from the translation at vear-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprizing lensehold imprivements, furniture and xtures, office
equipment and vehicles, are stated at histonca) cost lesss accumulated depreciation, Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the scguisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ecamrying amount or recognized as a separate apat, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
vepleced part is derecognised. All other repairs end mainienance ave charged to profit or loss during
the period in which they ave incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost over their estimated useful lives, or in the case of leasehold improvements, the shorter
lease terms as follows:

Leasehold improvements The shorter of three years or lease terms
Fumniture and fixtures Five years

Office equipment Three vears

Vehicles Three vears

Theassets’ usaful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting perbod.
An asset's earrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and lesses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and
are recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
{a) Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
cstimated useful lives (five vears).

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as ineurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable
and unigue software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets,
Computer software development costs recognised as assets are smortised over their
estimated useful lives (not exceeding five vears).

u.l':!-.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

z Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)
{b)  Others

Tntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amartisation period and the amortisation method for intangible asset with a finite usefal
life are reviewed at least at each financial vear end,

Intangible assets with indefinite wseful lives ave tested for impairment annuvally either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised,
Theuseful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite lifeis reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
usefil life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis,

2.7 Impairment
(a) TImpairment of intangible assets and other non-financial assets

Assels that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicats that the carrying
amountz may not be reeoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
an asset's corrying amount exceeds its recoverable amoont. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair wloe less costs of disposzl and value in use. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial sssets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(h) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expacted eredit losses (*ECL") for the financial
assets measured st amortised cost (including cash and eash equivalents and fees
receivable).
For fees receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by HEKFRS o,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Finaneiul assets messumad al fair value thirough profit or loss (*FVPL") are not subject to
ECL assessment.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
Investments and other financial assels
Classification

The Company clessifies its financial assets in the fellowing measurement categories: those to be
measured subsequently at FVPL, at fair value through other comprehensive income (*FVOCI) and
at amortised eost. The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the
finanecial assets and the contractual terms of the eash flows,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss ar ather
comprehensive income ("OCI"). For investments in cquity instruments that are not beid for trading,
this will depend on whether the Company has madi: an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognidon to account for the equity imvestment at FVOCL The Company reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its business mode] for managing those assets changes,

Recognition and derecogmition

Begilar purchases and sales of financial assets are recopnised on the trade-date = the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the Onancial assels. They are Initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carsied at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial aszets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recopnized at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss, Finunclal asscts are dercesgaised when the rights
tu receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the

Company has transterred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Measurement

At initig] recognition, the Company messures ¢ financial asset at it friv value, Transaction costs of
financial assets carvied at FVPL are expensed in prodit or loss.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as listed equity securities and
listed investment funds) are based on last traded prices at the close of trading on the reporting date.
An active market is a market in which transactions for the instruments take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing hasis. When trading of an listed
security is suspended, the investment &5 valued al the Company’s cstimate of its fair value.

Unlisted investrment funds aze stated at fair value based on the nel asset values of the respective -
funds obtained from the relevant fund administrators. When the net asset values of an investment

fund is not executable, the Company reviews the valuations of the underlying investments to assess
the appropristeness of the net asset value as provided by the relevant fund administrator,

= The Company subsequenthy measures all equity investments at FVPL.

s Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL ave recognised in net gains/(lnsses) in
the statement of comprehensive income.

¢ Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in prefit or loss as other income
when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Transfers between levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy are recognised as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that cansed the transfer,

=14 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER z024

z Summary of material accounting policics (Continued)
z.0 Fees reccivable

Fees receivable are initially recognized at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financial components. when they are recognised at fair value, and
subzequently measured at amortised eost using the effective interest method, less any provision for
impairment.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, time deposits and demand deposits, Cagh equivalent are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.,

2,11  Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
2,12 Current and deferred tax

The current tax charge is calenlated on the basis of the tax laws enactad or substantivelv enacted by
the reporting date in the jurisdictions where the Company operates and generates taxable income,
Management periedically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to simations in which
applicable tax repulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate,
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the Hability method, on temporayy differences ansing between the
tax hases of assets and liebilities and their carryving amounts in the Anancial statements. Howewver,
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises frorn inital recognition of an asset or a liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rotes {and laws) that have
Leen enacted or substentively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax esset is realised or the deferred tax lability is settled,

Deferved tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against ewrent tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax labilitics are provided on temporary diffevenices arising on investments in subsidiaries
and asseciates, except wheve the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by

the Company and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future,

a.15.-.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2u:z4

z Summary of material accounting policies {Continued)
z.13 Revenue recoghilion

Income is classified by the Company &s revenue when it arises from the provision of services in the
ordinary course of the Company's activities,

The Company recognises revenue when or as it satisfes a performance obligation by transferring
promised services (assets) to the custoomers in an amount to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services. Assets are transferred when or as the customer obtaing
control of those assets. The Company includes variable consideration in revenue when itis no longer
highly probable of significant reversal — when the associated uneertainly s resolved. For some
contracts with eustomers, the Company has discretion to involve 2 third party in providing services
to the customer. Generally, the Company s deemed to be the principal in these arengements
beciuse the Company contrels the promised services belore they are Lansferred to customners, and
accordingly presents the revenue gross of velated costs.

{a) Fee income from investiment management activities

Management fees are recognised as the servicss are performed over time and are primarily
based on agreed upon percentage of the net asset values of the investment funds and
managed accounts.

Performance fees are recognized on the performance fee valuation day of the investment
funds and mwanaged accounts when there is a positive performance for the relevant
performance period and it is determined that they are ne longer highly probable of
significant reversal in a subsequent period, taling into consideration the relevant basis of
calenlation for the investment funds and managed accounts.

Y] Fee income from fund distribution activities

Front-end fees relating to the distribution services are recognised when the services are
performed.

(c) Service fees income

Service fees are recopnised when gervices are rendered in aceordance with the underlying
agreements. The petformance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered,

id) Interest income
Interest income from financial assets measuring at fair value is related Lo interest income
from money macket instruments. [t is recognised on a Bme-proportion basls using the
effective interest method.
214 Interest and dividend income
Interest income from financial assets measuring at amortised cost is reluted to interest income from

time deposits and bank deposits. It is recognised on a time-proportian basis using the cifeetive
interest method. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo024

Summary of material aceounting policics (Continued)
Distribution fee expenses

Distribution fee expenses represent rebates of management fee and front-end fee income by the
Company to the distributors for selling its products. Distribution fee expenses are recognised or as
the Company satisties a performance chbligation by transferring promised services (assets) to the
customers in an amount of ecrresponding management fees and front-end fees the Company
expected to be entitled in exchange for those services.

Compensation and benefits
{a) Bonus

The Company recognises & lHability and 2n expense for bonuses on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to owners of the Company after certain adjustments.
The Company has & deferred bonus plan for certain eligible employees that allows such
crployees to receive bonus amounts in eash or in shares of nominated company funds
managed by the Company with the fluctuations in share value earned /borne by the relevant
cmployees, Amounts to be distributed under the bonus plans are expensed over the vesting
period based on the estimated payout amount. The Company recognises a liability where
contractually abliged or where there is a past practice that has ereated a constructive
obligation.
(b)  Share-based compensation

Certain directors and cmployees have been granted options over ordinary shares of the
ultimate holding company under a share option scheme. The [air value of the employee

services received by the Company in exchange for the grant of share options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by refergnce ta the fair value

of the share options granted:

. including any maket performance conditions;

. excluding the impact of sny scrvice and non-market performance vesting
conditions; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Mon-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of share
options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to he satisfied. At
the end of each reporting pericd, the entity revises its estimates of the number of share
options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profitor loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

In the same financial peried, the ultimate holding eompany makes a recharge to the
Company in respeet of the options granted to the Company’s employees.

{c} Pension obligations

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Xong which isa
defined contribution plan generally funded through payments te trustec-administered
funds. The Company pays contributions to the mandatery provident fund scheme on a
mandatory basis. The Company has no legal or constructive gbligations to pay further
contributions if the mandatory provident fund scheme does not hold sufficlent assets to pay
all amplovees the benefits relating to emplovee services in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as compensation and benefit cxpenses when they are due.

-17-
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VALUE FARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

a Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2,16 Compensation and benefits (Continued)
{(d}  Other cmiployvee henefits

Short-term employee benefit costs ave charged in the period to which the employee services
relate. Employee entitloments to annual leave and long-service leave are recognised when
they acerue to employees. An acerual is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-serviee leave as & result of services rendered by emplovees up to the reporting date,

z17 Leases

The Company leases various offices. Rental contracts arve typically made for fixed peried of three
years, Lease terms are negotiated on an individual hasis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a eorresponding lability at the Sate at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease pavment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit ar loss over the lease period so es to
produce a constant perfodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis,

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially meassured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

' fixed payments (including in-substance fixed pavments), less any lease incentives
receivable; and
. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be determined, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessce would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in o similar economic
environment with similar terms and conditions,

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

. awly lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received;
any initial direct costs; and
provision of restoration costs,

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-valuc assets are recognized on a
straight-line basis 2s an expense in profit or loss. Shart-term leases arc leases with a lease term of
12 months or less. Low-valne assets comprise small items of office equipment,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zoz4

z Summary of material acconnting policies {Continued)
z2.18 Conlingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose exdstence will
oniy be confirmed by the ocourrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the eontrel of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be
reguired or the amount of obligation cannot be measuved reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, When a change in the probability
of an ouiflow oceurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A conlingent asset is 4 possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occcurrence or non-gccurrence of one or more uncertain futurs events not wholly
within the control of the Company. A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, where necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually cerlain, an asset ix recognised.

2,19 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been veclassified to conform with current year presentation.
3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual resalts. The
estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear are addressed below.

ax Investment funds managed by the Company

The Company acts as an investment manager to a number of investment funds and has provided
seed capital for the set up of these funds. When determining whether the Company controls these
funds, usually the level of appregate economic interests of the Compaty in these funds and the level
of investors’ rights to remove the investment manager are considered.

The Company determines that it has no centrol over some investment funds since the level of
aggregate economic interests of the Company in those funds is not so significant that it gives the
Company control over the funds together with the level of investors” rights to remove the investment
manager.

3.2 Income taxes and deferred tax assets

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for income tax, There are
transactons and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit izsues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will impact the
ineome tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the determination is made.

The directors have assessed that it is not yet probable that taxable profits will be available in the
foreseeable future, and therefore the Company has not recognised any deferved tax asset in respect
of the unutilised kax losses as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, Refor to note 10,

-lg_
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VALUE FARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Financial risk mmanagement
Finamcial risk factors

The Company's activities in relation to financial instruments expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk {including foreign exchange risk, intevest rate risk and price risk), cvedit risk and
liguidity risk. The Company's overall financial risk inanagement programme foeuses on the analysis,
evaluation and management of financial risks and scels to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Company's financial performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Cornpany has transactions with counterparties in different loeations and is exposed to
forelgn exchange risk arising fromvarious currency exposures. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions and recognised pseets and liabilities which are
denominated in a enrrency that iz not the entity’s funcional currenay.,

Asat 31 December 2024 and 2023, the majority of the assets and liabilities are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar (the Company's functicnal and presentation currency), United States
dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar, Pound sterling and Singapore dollar. United States
dollar is eurrently linked to Hong Wong dollar within a narrow range. The directors
therefore consider that there is no significant foreign exchange risk with respect to the
United States dollar,

The following table shows the approximate changes in the Company’s post-tax profit for
the year in response to reasonable possible change in the foreign exchange raies to which
the Company has significant exposure as at 51 December 2024, with all other variables held

conztant.
Net foreign
CUrTENCY CXPOSUTCS
Estimated
Non- Monctary impact on
monetary nct assets  Percentage post-tax
net assets {liabilitics) change profit
HEg'ooo HEs'voa % HES'000
As at 21 December
2024
Austrelian dollar 18,682 6,525 +f-6 +f-1,512
Japanese ven 1,466 35 +f-10 +/-150
Malaysian ringgit 12,021 3 +/-3 +f-464
Pound sterling 21,102 10,613 +/-4 +/-1,260
Renminbi 609 0,888 +/=5 +/-379
Singapore dollar 6,495 (7,619) +f- +f-23
50,465 16,535
- ﬂﬂ -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

{a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Net foreign
CUrrency exposures
Estimated
Non- Muonetary impact on
monetary net assels  Percentage post-tax
net assets {Habilities) change profit
HES o000 HES ono o HEg'ooo
As at 31 December
2023
Australian dollar 26,720 (24) +/-5 +{-1,335
Found sterling 20,205 0,428 +/-5 +/-1,486
Renminbi 7044 1) +/-5 +f-570
Singapove dollar 20,485 2,008 -1 +/-2326
74,542 11,855
(b) Interest rale risk
Cash flow interest rate rigk

The Compuny's cash flow interest vate risk arises primarily from bank deposits and money
market instruments (2o23: bank deposits) of HEKS65,200,876 (2023: HES8,412,74%),
which are interest-bearing at variable rales. The management monitors the interest rate
expostre on a conlinuous basis and adjost the portfolio of bank saving balanecs and bank
deposits when necessary, As at 31 December 2024, if intercst rates had been 100 basis
points {2025: 50 basis points) (these represent a reasonable possible shift in the interest
rates, hoving regard to the historieal volatility of the interest rates) higher or lower with all
other variables held eonstant, post-tax profit and equity would have been approximately
HE$654,000 higher or lower {2023: HES42,000 higher or lower) respectively. The
sensitivity analysis for the vears ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 was primarily arising
from the inerease or decrease in interest income on cash and cash equivalents.

Fair value \ s

The Company considered that the fair value interest rate risk is insignificant as at 5
December 2024 and 2023. Therefore, no sensitivity analvsis has been performed,

(<) Price risk
The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk in respeet of investments held by the
Company of HK$1,249,992,528 (2023:HKS1,384,850,155), which comprises investments

in eertain investment funds that it manuges as seed capilal and other investrments in lsted
and unlisted equity zecurities and investment funds.

-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2024

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

(c)

(d)

Price risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the approximate hnpact of lncreases or decreases in the
markets in which the Company's investmecnts operate. For the purpose of measuring
sensitivity of the Company's investments against markets, the Company uses the
correletion between the price movements of the MSCI Chine Index and the Company’s
investments Decavse the Company’s investments mainly focus on the Greater China
cquitics market and the directors consider that the M3CI Ching Index is o well-known index
representing the universe of opportunities for investments in the Greater China equities
market available to non-demestic investors.

The analysis is based on the assumption thas the index had increased or decreased by the
stated percentages {these represent a reasonable possible shift in the index, having regard
to the historical volatility of the index) with all other variables held constant and the
investments moved acconding to the historical correlation with the index,

Change Post-tax profit
2024 2023 202 0y
HEKS'"aon HE$ 000
MSCI China Index +[-20% +-20% +/-59.541 +{=79,241

Post-tax profit for the year would increase or decrease as a result of gaing or losses on
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Refer to note
13 for additional disclosures on the price risk in relation to investments.

In addition to equity securities price risk in respect of investments held by the Company,
the Company is also exposed to price risk indirectly in respect of management fee which is
determined with reference to the net asset vilue and performeanee of the investiment funds
and managed accounts respectively,

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and eash equivalents, deposits with brokers and related interest
receivable placed with banks and financial institutions. Credit risk also arises from credit
exposures with respect to the investment funds and managed accounts on the outstanding

fees receivable. The Company earns fees from investment management activities and fund
distribution activities from the investment funds and managed accounts.

Credit risk iz managed on a group basis and the eredit quality of the counterparty is assessed,
taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factora.

_22_
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Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Cash
The table below summarises the credit quality (as lustrated by credit
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rating) of cash and

cash equivalents, deposits with brokers and related interest raceivable placed with banks.

2024 z023

HEgoo00 HE$'ooo

Al 45985 -
Ah- a2 -
A 56 791
A 27,460 16,616
EBB+ 1 5
BBE - 20,853
Unrated 101 8
73,644 38,273

The reference independent eredit rating used is Standard & Poor's, Fiteh Ratings or

Moody's long-tern local issuer credit rating, The directors do not exp
non-performance by these counterparties,

— ¢ of financial

ect any losses from

Fees receivable, other receivables and amounis due from related companies are subject to

the expected ercdit loss moedel. While eash and eash equivalents are

also subject to the

impairment requirements of HKFRS g, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The Compeny applies the HEFRS ¢ simplified approach to messure expected credit losses

which uges a lifetime expected loss allowance for all fees reccivable.

To measure the expected credit losses, fees receivable have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristies and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of fees receivable and the corresponding historical credit losses, adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on macrocconomic factors affecting the

ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

Based on the Company's past experience in collecting the outstanding

fiees roccivable, the

chanee of unsuccessful collection of fees receivable and other reccivables were minimal.

Applying the requirements of HEFRS g, the cxpected credit loss is

immaterial for the

Company and, as much, no expected credit loss has been recognised within the financial

statements,

Impaitnent losses on fees receivable, other receivables and amount

5 due from related

companies are presented as net impairment losses within profit or loss. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item. No
impairment losses on fees receivable and other receivables are recognised as at 91

December 2024 and 2023 respectively.
Referto note 14 for additional disclosures on the credit risk in relation

-23.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Finaneial risk management

Financial risk factors

(e) Liquidity risk
The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining a sufficient amount of liquid aszets to
ensure daily operational reguirements are fulfilled. As at 31 Decernber 2024, the Company
held liguid assets of HK$73,642,000 (2023 HK$38,239,000), being cash and cash
equivalents, that are expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Company's financia! assets and lizbilities by remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiseounted cashflow.

2024 2023
Between 1
Wo stated Less than and 5 Nostated Lessthan Betweenid
matarity 1¥ear vears  maturity 1year and 5years
HE%ooo HESvoo HEKS'voo HEKSooo HKsonoo HES"noo
Asscls
Amonnts dua
from related
cOmpanics 26,101 - - 2l 502 - -
Investments
Mon-derivative
financial
instruments 1,252,470 - 1,301,593 = -
Fess receivable - 3,660 E 3,816 -
Amaounts
redgavable on
sales of
investments - 19,634 - - 42,959 -
Other receivables - 2 4,008 - 2,097 4,609
Cash and cash
eqquivalents 73,042 - - 17,420 20,819 -
1,452,213 23,206 4928 1430515 G625 4,693
Liahilibes
Amounis due to
related
companies (284,628) - - (579.504) - -
Acemed honus - (z=,426) (7 - {2710 {1,986}
Distribulion fee
expenses payable - (2,848) - (3.273) +
Dther payahles
and accrual
expenses E {22,819) - - (16,9.41) =
Lease liabilities . {13,824) (19,450} - (15,411) {33,273)
(284,648) (61,517) (21281}  (579.504) (38 Bgt) (35.259)
Cummulative gap 1,067,565 {38,6m) (16.253) B51,001 A0,y (30,5660
- 2.: -

206/281



4:3

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Financial risk management (Continued)
Capital rislk management

The Company's objectives in managing capital arve to safeguard its ability to continue as 2 going
concern in order to provide retums for shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders. In order to
maintzin or adjust the capital structurs, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholder, return capital to shareholder, issue new shares or sell assels (o reduce labilities, The
Company monitors capital on the basis of the total equily as shown in the statement of financial
position. The Company’s strategy is 1o maintain o solid capital base to support the operations and
development of its business in the long term.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Company is licensed to carry out the following regulated
activities under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Crdinance (*SFO™).

Type1 Dealing in securities

Tvpe 2 Dealing in futures contracts
Type 4 Advising on securities

Type 5 Advising on futures contracts
Type o Asget management

The Company is subject to and complied with capital requirements on the paid-up capital and liquid
capital requirements under the SFO for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,

Fair value estimation

The following table presents the Company's finuucial instruments that ere measured ot fair value at
the end of the reporting period by level of the fair value measurement hicrarchy.

Level o Lovel 2 Total

pliE] 2023 Py ELE unzg wony
HEE sou HEKE'oon  HESoon EEwan IR ety ITKH 000

Irvostments (Kot 1)
Listed securities ET R AR5G49 E 1045 453,258 50,095

Tinlestod seenurilies

Irrcestmart firnes . = GBI Ege 508 ] B3q,508
Sub-tots] 453,297 5E5.040 709243 sy 1390590

Lage AT

The fair value of finaneial instruments traded in aclive markets is bascd on quoted market prices
for identical instraments at the reporting date. The quoted market price vsed for the financial assets
held by the Company is the current last traded price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of finaneial instruments that ave not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely 2s little as possible
on entity-specific estmates. If all significant inpuis required to fair value an instrument are
obscrvable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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Financial risk management {Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)
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I one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the insbruments are

included in level 5.

SD-Eﬂﬁc valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
Cuoted bid prices {or nel asset values) plmru]ed by fund administrators for unlisted
investment funds, These investment funds invest substantially in private debt instruments

and private equities.

. Other technigues, such ux recent arm's length transactions, discount cash flow analysis or
reference to other instruments that are substantally the same, for the remaining financial

instruments.

Az of 31 December 2024, the Company does not hold level 3 instruments. The following table
presents the movement of level 3 instruments as of 31 December 2023,

As at 1 January

Transfar

Drisposal

Liosses recognised in profit or less and included in net losses
om investirents

As at 31 December

Chonge in unrealized losses for level 3 instruments held at
year end and Included in prodit oz boss and net lesses on
invesiments

Year ended 31 Devember 2023

Listed

seenritios

HES non

4,868
(4,668}

Unlisted

Secnrities

- eyuily
securities
HES oo

2,034

(965]
(6g)

Taotal

HER oo

S7o2
[4,6068)
(565}
(649}

During the year ended 51 December 2023, there was a transfer from lovel 3 to level 2 of this
suspended lsted security of HE$4,668,000 in the fair value measurement hierarchy doe to
resumption of listing of that suspended listed security during the year ended 31 December 2023,

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the disposal of HE$965,000 represents the disposal of

an existing unlisted equity security.

-af -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zoz24

Fee mncome

Revenue consists of fees from Investment management activities and fund disteibution activities,

2024 2023
HEK%'onoo HEK#ooo
Management fees 35,611 44,438
Front-cnd fecs 205 288
Performancee foes 578 -
Total fee income 36,485 44,726
Other income
2024 2023
HKSoo0 HE%aco0
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents 1,381 6,005
Dividend income on financial agsets at fair value through
prafit or loss 3,588 14575
Service fees from immediate and ultimate holding
companies and related companies (Mote 25.4) 245,607 53,451
Others 523 32
Total other income 249,485 240,433
Compensation and benefit expenses
2024 2023
HKS$'ooo HKs'a00
Salaries, wages and other benefts 148,477 162,200
Management bonus - 10,208
Discretionary bonus 19,467 -
Deferred bonus 4,409 -
Net reversal of share-based compensation {9g4) -
Share-based compensation (Note 7.1) - 12,008
Pension costs - mandatory provident [und scheme 2,147 2,416
Total compensation and benefit expenscs 173,506 187,031

-a7-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zoz24

Compensation and henefit expenses (Continued)

Sharc-based compensation

Value Partners Group Limited, the immediate and ultimate holding company, granted share
options to the Company’s directors, emplovees and others whom the directors consider, in their
sole diseretion, have contributed to the Company.

TDuring the years 2024 and 2023, no options was granted.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related exercise prices are as
follows:

Average
cxcreisc Number of
price (HK# options
per share) ("ooo)

As at 1 January zozj, 31 December zoz3z and 1

January 2024 4.55 97,559
Forfeited 3.47 (9,250}
As at 31 Deecmber 2024 4.67 88700

Out of the 88700000 (2023 97,050,000) ontstanding share options, 88,709,000 (2023:
89,334,000} options were excreisable as at 31 December 2024 with weighted average exercise price
of HES4.67 (2023: HE$4.57) per share. No options were exercized during the years ended 51
December 2024 and 2023.

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise price:

Exercise
price (HKS Nuwwber of options {"'o00)
Expiry date per share) 2024 2023
14 April 2025 5.87 20,500 20,500
22 Angust 2006 414 G0,209 0,200
11 December 2026 5.55 #,000 8,000
10 March 2027 347 = 0,250

The shove information on number of share options relates to Value Partners Group Limited as a
whole and has not been apportioned among the individual group entilies due to impracticality.

-n8-
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Compensation and benefit expenses (Continued)
Deferred bonus
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, a portion of the bonus granted to the emplovees and
directors of the Company was deferred and payable to the employees and directors if they remain
employed with the Company throughout the vesting period betwesn 15 to 39 months (zoz3z:12 to
a6 months). These deferred bonuses are recognised 5z an expense over the relevant vesting period.
The Company offered eligible emplovess to elect settlement of such deferred bonus in shares of

nominated company funds managed by the Company.

The table below summarises the deferred bonvs incurred during the year for years 2026-2028

{=023: years 2024-2026).

2023
HEKS'0o0

2023
HK#g'000

1,700
4,714
1,078
4,374
19,072
4,544
789
o050
2,630
1,188
168
18,013

19,254
1,019

81,915

moy
HES'aoo

(42,235)

54483
(1,125]

11,123

=024
HES o000
Deferred bonus 4,400
Other expenses
Z024
HKsg'000
Auditor's remuncration 1,618
Depreciation and amortization (Motes 11 and 12) 2,719
Entertainment expenses 053
Government rent, rate and building management fee 4,120
Information technology expenses 21,100
Insurance expenses 5,226
Legal and professional fees 1,172
Marketing expenses 2,001
Office expenses 2,175
Recrultment expenses 3077
Registration and licensing fees 199
Research expenses 25,867
Service fees to ultimate holding company and related
companies (Note 25.5) 13,175
Travelling expenses 1,157
Others 1,344
Total other expenses 85003
Other gains - net
2024
HES 000
Wet goins/(losses) on investrents
Met realised losses on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (77.979)
Met unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 223,067
Met foreign exchange losses (a71)
Total ather gains — net 134,717
- 29 =
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo24

Tax eredit

Under current tax laws of the British Virgin Ilands, there are noincome, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Company. As 4 result, no provision for British Virgin Islands
income and capital gains taxes has been made in the financizl statements.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided on the estimated nm&sablellf:mﬁglnss for the year
ended 31 December 2024 at the rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%). Tax outside Hong Xong is calculated
at the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdictions.

2024 2023
HKS‘QOD m’um

Current tax
Owverseas tax " )
Total current tax 5 =
Deferred tax e et .| il o e
Origination and reversal of temperary differences [Note 17) {153) (548)
Total tax credit t50) o

The tax on the Company’s profit before/(loss) tax differs from the theoretical amonnt that would
arise using the tax rate of long Kong as follows:

2024 2023
HKsao0 HE#oo0
Profit/(loss) before tax 142,046 (7,274)
Tax ealeulated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) 23,596 (1,217}
Tax effects of: . )
Non-taxable income and gains on investmenls {4z,008) {15.102)
Non-deductible expenses and losses on investments 17,657 10,786
Adjustrent of under/{over) provizsion in prior year 1§? (2,601)
Tax losses not recognised 1,536 7676
Tax credit {150) (548)

Deferred tax assels are recognised Tor bax losses carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2024, the
Company did not recognise deferred tax assets of HKS13,412,606 (2023: 11K511,876,630) in respect
of losses amm‘mtirﬁ;o HE4$81,289,060 (2023: HK471,081,395) that can be carried forward against
future taxable profits as the realisation of the related tax benehit may not be probable.

439-
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Property, plant and cquipment
Leaschold Furniture
improve- ana Office
ments fixtures cquipment Vehicles Total
HE#aoo HE&o00 HE%poo HES voo HES#'vou
As at1 January zo0z3
Cinst 17356 1,544 18,272 1,838 34,510
Accumulated depeeciation (15,736) {1.455] [15,088) {z,638) (2q,720)
Net book amount 1,520 156 2,284 - 4,090
Year ended 31 December
025
Opening net ook ameunt 1,620 156 2,259 - 4,000
Additions 397 7 b L
Drepresiation (Note 8) {nzus) {7a) (1,232) - (z608)
Closing nat book amount Gis 214 1.2285 - 2,054
As at 31 December zozy and
1 January 2oz
Cart 17,753 1641 18.445 1,658 30,477
Accurvylated depreciation {17,220) (1430 (17,220} (1.638) (27.418)
NMet book amount [T 10 L2325 - 2,059
Year ended 31 December
Lnz4
Opening net book amount a2 210 1,225 - 2,080
Additions - - - a7 7Ry
Depreution (Nolc B) (371) {r4) (Hza) (66) (1,231}
Closing net byok umount 251 136 4as TZ1 1,515
As at 31 December 2024
Cost 17,753 1,6 18,445 2,425 40,264
Accumulated depresiution (r7.500) {1508 (18,040 (704} (38,749)
Net book amount 259 136 405 72 1515
- 3] =
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Intangihle assets

Ag at 1 . January 2023
Cost
Accomulated amortisation

MNet book amount

Year ended 31 December 2023
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortization (Mote 8)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January
T 77 §

Coat

Apcnmulated amortisation

Net hook amoiint

Year ended 31 Deceomber 2024
Opening net book amonnt
Additions

Amortisation (Mote 8)

Closing net book annount
As at 31 December 2024
Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net ool amount

_32_
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Compuler
sollware Others Total
HES o000 HE#%oo0 HES'ooo0
32,990 T.500 40,490
(28.021) - {28,021)
4,569 7,500 12,460
4,069 Te00 12,469
27 # 7
(2,016) - (2,016]
2,080 7,500 10,480
33,017 TS0 40,517
(30,037) - (30,037}
2,080 Faa00 10,480
2,980 7,500 10,480
(L388] - {1,388)
1,592 Foo00 9,002
33,017 7,500 40,517
{31.425) - (31,425)
Leo2 7.500 9,092
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Investments
Investments include the following:
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
2024 2023
HK$'ooo0 HES'000
Listed securities (by place of listing)
Equity securities — Hong Kong - 1,046
Investment funds - Hong Kong 441,206 553,044
Investment funds - Malaysia 12,021 -
Market value of listed securitics 453,227 556,005
Unlisted securities (by place of incorporation/
establishment)
Investment funds - Cayman Islands a23 2,191
Investment funds — Hong Kong 315,388 180,365
Investinent funds - Ireland (Note 13.1) 483,332 652,042
Fair value of unlisted securities 700,243 834,508
Total investments 1,252,470 1,391,593
Representing:
Non-current 1,251,644 1,388,300
Current Baf 5,293
Total investments 1,252,470 1,381,593

Interests in unconsolidated structured entilies

The Company provided seed capital to set up a number of investment funds, of which the Company
acts as an investment manager or investment advisor. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Company determined that all of these investment funds are unconsolidated structured entities.
Refer to note 25.2 for details.

The maximum exposure to loss for all interests in structure entities is the earrying value of the
investments in investment funds (refer to note 25.2) and fees receivable as shown in the statement
of financial position. The net asset value of the investiment funds invested by the Company ranges
from HK$z,000 to HES44: million (2023 HKS45,000 to HE$481 million). The size of the
investment funds managed by the Company ranges from USS16 million to US$1,367 million (2023:
1UI5$4 million to US$1,436 million). During the years ended 32 December 2024 and 2023, other
than seed capital, the Company did not provide other financial support to the unconsolidated
structured entities and has no intention of providing other support.
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Investments (Continued)
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Interests in unconselidated structured entities (Continued)

During the year cnded 31 Decernber 2024, there was purchaga of an investment of VP-DJ Sharizh
China A-Shares 100 ETF of HK$9,682,000 from 2 related company. Pleass refer to Note 257 for

details.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were purchase of investments of Value Gald E1T
of HKS420,201,600, Valuc Partners EMQQ Emerging Markets Internet & Ecommerce ETT of
HE$71.950,000 and Value Partners All China Bond Fund of HES29,162,000 from a related

company. Please refer to Note 25.7 for details.

Investments are denominated in the following cwrrencies:

Australian dollar
Hong Kong dollar
Malaysian ringgit
Pound sterling
Renminlbi
Singepore dollar
United States dollar
Others

Total inveslments

Investment in an associate measured at fair valuc

2024 2023
HEg&o00 HES 000
18,682 26,720
442,041 564,511
12,021 -
21,102 20,203
G99 7044
6,495 20,485
740,064 751902
1,466 a8
1,252,470 1,391,503

Investment in an associate is categorised in’ Non-current Investments' in the staterment of financial

position.

Where the Company has interests in the investment funds that give the Company significant
influence, but not control, the Company records such investments at fair value, Details of such

investment funds are summarised as follows:

Place of
Name incorporalion
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV (2 Iraland

Value Partners Ireland Fund [CAV ()

Met asset value
Loss and total comprchensive loss for the year

_34_
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z024 2023
48% 41%
=02 2023
HES$'noo HEK&'oo0o0
1,149,003 1,575,751
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2024

Investments (Continued)

Investment in an associate measured at fair value (Continued)

(a)

The sub-funds under Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV are considered as an associate in
an aggregate basis. The sub-funds included: Value Partners Asia Ox-Japan Equity Fund,
Value Partners Asign Dynamic Bond Fund, Value Partners Chinz A Shares High Dividend
Fund, Value Partners Greater China High Vield Bend Fund end Value Partners Health Care
Fund (2023: Value Partners Asia Ex-Japan Equity Fund, Value Partners Asian Dynamic
Bond Fund, Value Partners China A Shares Equity Fund, Value Partners China A Shares
High Dividend Fund, Value Partners Classic Equity Fund, Value Partners Greater China
High Yield Bond Pund, Value Partners Health Care Fund and Value Partners Asian Food
and Nutrition Fund).

The fair value of the Company’s interests in such investment funds sre summarised in note
25.2.

Fees receivable

The cartying amounts of fees receivable approximate their fair value due to the short-term maturity,
Fees receivable from investment management activities arc mainly duc at the end of the relevant
valuation period of the investment fonds and managed aceounts. However, some of these fees
receivable are only due after the relevant valuaton pericd as a result of credit periods granted to
certain investment funds and managed aceounts whieh are generally within one month. The aging
analysis of fees receivable that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

2024 2023
HES"s00 HES000

Fees receivable that were past due but not impaired

1-30 davs m 46
Fees receivable that were within eredit period (31 - 00 days) 3,660 3,770
Total fees receivable 2,660 3,816
Fees receivable are denominated in the following currencies:

kA LOZY

HESo0o HE=2'o00

Hong Kong dellar 917 1,224
United States dollar 2,743 592
Total fees receivable 3,660 4,816

Fees receivable from investment management activities are generally deducted from the net asset
value of the imvestment funds and managed accounts and paid directly by the administrator or
custodian of the investment funds and managed accounts at the end of the relevant valuation period
or credit period, as appropriate.

There was no impairment provision on fees receivable g at 31 Decernber 2024 and 2023,

_35_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR. ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

15 Cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
HE% o000 HE#o00
Investments in money market instruments 45,985 Z
Cash at banks and in hand 27,520 17,176
Short-term bank deposits 2 20,819
Deposits with brokers 128 244
Total cash and cash equivalents 73042 38,239
Casgh and cash equivalents are denominated in the following ewrrencies:
2024 2023
HEKs'000 HEK%0o00
Australian dollar 336 287
Hong Kong dollar 28,602 9,372
Japanese yen a5 1
Pound sterling 1,202 10
Malaysian ringgit gz -
Renminbi 292 4
Singapore dollar 440 20,860
United States dollar 42,643 7,605
Total cash and cash equivalents 73,642 38,230
16 Issued equity
Share Share
Number of shares eapital premiwn Total
Class A Class B HE&'ooo HE&'ooo0 HE&'o00
Ag at 1 Januvary zoz],
31 December 2023,
1 January 2024 and
31 December 2024 11,400,450 3.8093.318 11,855 41,017 53,763

As at 31 December 2024, the total authorised number of Class A ordinarv shares and Class B
ordinary shares were 15,000,000 shares (2o25: 15,000,000 shares) and 5,803,318 shaves (2025:
3,805,318 shares) respectively with a par value of US50.1 (2023: USS0.1) per share and all izsued
shares were fully paid.

The ordinary shares are non-redesmable and are entitled to dividends. Each crdinary share earries
one vote. In the case of winding up of the Company, ordinary shares ceny the 1ight to return the
paid-up capital and any balance then remaining.

The Class A and Class B ordinary shares have the same rights with regard to voting and dividends
except in the event of liquidation, no distribution shall be made Lo the helders of Class A ordinary
shares unless the holdess of Class B ordinary shaves have received the full amount of their
lquidation values. In addition, any surplus assets alter distribution to the holders of Class A and
Class B ordinary shares as mentioned above shall be distributed to the holders of Class B ordinery
shares ratably.

- 26 -
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17 Deferred tax

The movement of deferved tax assets is as follows:

Deferred tax assels

As at 1 January 2023
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10)

Axs at 31 December 2023 and 1 January zozg
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10)

As at 31 December 2024

The analysis of deferved tax is as follows:

zo2z4g
HE% ooo
Deferred tax assets:
- Deferred tax assets to be recoverad after more than 12
months 2,304
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Apcelerated

depreciation
HK#'000

1,603
548

2,151
153

2,304

2023
HEK%o00

BI51

18 Distribution fee expenses payable

The carrying amounts of distribution fee expenses payable approximate their faic value due to the
short-term matucity. The aging analysis of distribution fee expenses pavable is as follows;

zozg 2023

HE%'oo0 HES'o00

0 - 30 days 2,800 %231
Over 60 days 48 42
Total distribution fee expenses payable 2,848 8,273

As at 31 Dacember 2024 and 2023, all the distribution fee expenses payable are denominated in

United States dallar,
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Right-of-use Assels — properties

Cost
At 1. January

Eenewal of new leases

At 31 December

Accumulated depreciation
At1Jannary

Depreciation
At 31 December

et book value
At 31 December

EDINETOOOO
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2024 2023
HES 000 HESo00
03,794 58,153

- 35,646

93,799 93799
{50,052} (3=,668)
{13,148} (17,384)
(63,200) {50,052}
30,509 43,747

iixcept for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets of the Group of which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries is a lessee and in relation te which the recognition exemption under HEFRS
16 is applicable, the Company recognizes for each of the leases a right-of-use asset. As at 21
December 2024 and 2023, right-of-use assets recognised were related to properties,

Depreciation charge on the right-of-use assets is recognised using the straight-line method, being
the period from the dates of the commencement/modification of the leases to the end of the term.

The carrying balances of the Heht-of-use assets are amortised to nil on the expiry dates of the leases.

Lease Liabilities

Ati1January

Renewnl of new leases
Leage payments
Finance costs

At 31 December

Representing

Current

- contractual maturity within 1 year
Non-current

- contractual matority after 1 vear but within 2 years
- econtractual maturity after 2 years but within 5 vears

Total lease liabilities

- 48 -
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2024 2023
HEs$ oo0 HE% 000
43,603 24,911
. 35!5‘4'5

(15,411) (18,580)
2,506 1,626
50,608 45,603
2024 2023
HK#8000 HE#000
12,139 12,905
12,095 12,139
5,564 18,559
18,559 30,098
30,608 43,603
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

21 Financial instruments by category
As of 31 December 2024 and 2023, other than investments as diselosed in the finaneal statements
which are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, all financial assets
including amounts due from related companies, fees receivable, cther receivables and cash and cash
equivalents are categorised as and carried at amortised cost. All the financial liabilites of the
Company are carried at amortised cost.
22 Notes to the Cash Flow Statemenl
Reconciliation of loss before tax to net cash used in operations
2024 2023
HES'o00 HE$ o000
Profit/(loss) before tax 142,946 {(7374)
Adjustments for
Interest income (1,381) (6,005)
Dividend income (5,888) (1,575)
Depreciation and amortisation 2719 4,714
Depreciation of right-of-use assete - properties 13,148 17,384
Interest expenses on lease liahility 2,506 1,626
Nel gaing on investments {145,088) (12,248)
Changes in working capital
Other assets 8 1,B85
Amounts due from related companies {4,593) 13,703
Fees receivable 156 484
Prepayments and other receivables 2,704 (47.502)
Amounts doe to related companies (204,856} (117,261)
Acerued bonus 18,500 (35,998)
Distribution and advisery fee expenses pavable {q425) (707}
Other payables end accrued expenses 5,978 (1,815)
Dividend payable = (100,000)
Net cash used in operations (261,252) (290,583)
ag Contingencies
The Company has contingent assets in respect of performance fees and contingent liabilities in
respect of the performance fee element of distribution fee expenses arising in the ordinary course
of business.
23.i Contingent assets

Performance fees for each performance period are generally caleulated annually with reference to
performanee fee valuation day. Performance fess ave only recognised when they are earned by the

Company.

_ag._
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Contingent assets (Continued)
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Therefore, as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, performance fees in respect of performance periods
ending on a periormance fee valuztion day not falling within the corresponding year and have not
been recognized. These performance fees may be receivable in cash if 2 positive performance results
or a performance threshold is exceeded on the performance fee valuation days, taldng into
consideration the relevant basis of caleulation for the investment funds and managed accounts,

Capital Commitments

Az at 31 December 2024, the capital commitment contracted to purchase IT faciliies and licensed
sofbware but not yet incurred amonnted to HE$ 5,940,000 (2023: HK$7,920,000),

2024 2023

HEK$000 HE#aoo

Within 1 year 1,980 1,980
1-2 yoars 1.£0 1.580
2-3 years 1,080 1,080
4 vears or above - 1,980
H940 7920

Related-party transaciions

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in the finaneial statements, the Company has also entered
into the following significant related -party transactions which, in the opinion of the divectors, were

carried cut in the ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business.

Key management compensgation

Key management includes directors of the Company. The compensation to key management for

employee serviees s as follows:

2024 2023
HESooon HE#%noo

Manegement bonus, discretionary bonus, salaries and other
short-tenm employee benefits 15,788 17,729
Share-based compensation - 5,713
Pension costs - mandatory provident fund scheme 48 54
Total key management compensation 15,836 24,496

-40-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2024

25 Related-party transactions (Continucd)
25.2 Investments in investment funds which are managed/advised by the Company

The Company had investments in the following structured entities. These are the investment funds
under the Company’s management or advisory and from which it cams fees from investment
management or advisory services and fund distribution activities. These investment funds manage
pools of assets frem investors, and are financed through the issue of units/shares to investors,
Certain investment funds where the Company kas significant influence are diseloged in note 13.1.

3,024 z0z3
HE#'ooo HE#'ooo0
Unconsolidated structured entities
Value Gold ETF & 441,337 481,453
Value Partners Asian Food And NMutrition Fundid - 105,684
Value Partners China A-Share Select Fund ™ 129 471
Vilue Partners Classic Fund & 370 1,126
Value Partners DJ Shariah China A-Shares 100 ETF 18,031 -
Value Partners EMOQ Emerging Markets Internet & _
Ecommeree ETF 74,500
Value Partners Fund Series — Value Partners All China Bond
Fund (@ sz e 38,913 40,078
Value Partners Fund Series ~ Value Partners Asian [ncome
Fume = 147 379
Value Partners Fund Series — Value Parlners Asian
Innovation Opportunities Fond o0 101,387 94,048
Value Partners Fund Serdes — Value Partners Asian Total
Return Bond und ©@ 5,654 12,842
Value Partners Greater China High Yield Incomes Fund &%) 412 1,027
Value Partners Hedge Fund Limited @ 2 e
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund ® 1008 2,064
Value Partners Intelligent Funds — Chinese Mainland Focus
Fund té 109 963
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAYV — Value Partners Asia
amic Bond Fund ® (Nate 13.1) 53,722 33,150
Value Partners Ireland Fund 1AV — Value Partners Asia Ex- 63
J_:imn Equity Fund ™ & (Note 13.1) 34,5359 3,223
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV - Value Partners China A -
Shares Equity Fund &6 (Note 13.1) ) 39,85
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV - Value Partners Ching A SRR
Shares High Dividend Fund ® (Note 13.1) r 47,952
Value Partmers Ircland Fund ICAV - Value Partoers Classic ) 66
Val t; {‘;(b{m?ilg‘{lﬂd ICAV | G
alue Parmers Iveland Fun - Value Pertners Greater
China High Yield Bond Fund (@ (Note 13.1) 250,865 319,014
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV - Value Partners Health
cm F!L'I!I:Id {n {Nﬂtﬂ 13’]\] 47,975 To095
Value Partners Jepan REIT Fund 167,720 -
Value Partners Multi-Asset Fund @) - 20,564
Total investments in investment funds which are
managed/advised by the Company 1,252,470 1,390,547

_4’_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2024

25 Related-party transactions (Continued)

25.2 Investments in investment funds which are managed/advised by the Company
(Continued)

{a) The shares held were management shares.

{b) The units held were Class X units.

{c) The units held was Class ¥ unit.

{d) The usnits held were Class A units and Class X units,
(e) The units held were Class RDE units.

{n The units held were Class A unhedge and hedge.
(g} The units held were Class ¥ units and Class X units.
{(h) The units held were listed class units.

25.3 Amounis due from and to related companies

The amounts due from and due to related companies mainly arises from management servics faes
and fund transfer to related companies which zre unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
repryment termes,

25.4 Service fees from the ultimate holding company and related companies
The Company received service fees from itz ultimate holding company and related companies for
the reimbursement of overheads and operating expenses in respect of general administrative
services, Service fees from its ultimate holding company and related companies for the vear ended
21 December 2024 were HEKS243,693,000 {2023: HKS232,451,000).

25.5 Service fees to the ultimate holding company and a related company
The Company was charged service fees by its wlfimate holding company and » related company for
the provision of marketing and business networking services and geneml administrative services to
the Company. Service fees to ultimate holding company wax HES3.600,000 (2023: HEKS3,500,000)

and a related company for the vear ended 31 December 2024 was HES9875.000 (2023%:
HK$15,654,000).

5.6 Management fee income

The Company acts as the fund manager for underlving funds it manages and received the
management fee income.

5.7 Investments in the listed investment funds
During the vear ended 31 December 2023, the purchases of Value Gold ETF of HKS420,201,000,
Value Partners EMQQ Emerging Markets Internet & Leommerce ETF of HK$71,950,000 and Value
Partners All China Bond Fund of HF$30,162,000 from the related company, Value Partners Hong
Kong Limited, were settled through the amount due to a related company by the Company.

2b6. Subseguent events

On 2 January 2025, a total of 42,027,682 share options were granted tothe Divector LIN Xianghong
and certain emplovees of the Group. The exercise price of the shares is IIK$1.534 per share,

-42-
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2024 12 31 1,300,000 185,341

1981 11 10

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

2024 12 31 6,827,891 973,452

1974

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.

2024 12 31 3,000,000,000
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HSBC Trustee Cayman Limited

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.

HSBC Trustee Cayman Limited

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.
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1.2
1960

1.3
MF

1993 2020
PF MF

2020

1.4
MF

1.5 2022 12 MF 12,995
3,224
2020 PF
2020 MF
1.6

2.1

CIMA
CIMA

2.2 MF

2.3 PF
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2.5 2020 MF
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MF
3.1
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3.2
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MF
CIMA

3.3
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3.4
2020 CIMA
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MF
MF
15
MF
80,000
100,000
4.1
CIMA
CIMA
21 CIMA CIMA
CIMA
4.2 CIMA
CIMA

MF MF
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CIMA

BOTA

CIMA 24,390

8,536
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KPMGLLP

P.O. Box 493
SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY 1-1106

Cayman Idands
Tel +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164

Web  www.kpmg.com/ky
Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JA-VP China New Century Fund (the “Sub- fund”), a sub-fund of
Value Partners Intelligent Funds, set out on pages 7 to 35, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities
and investment schedule as at 31 December 2024, the statement of operations, the statement of changes in net
assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to financial statements, comprising
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of the Sub-
fund as at 31 December 2024, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Sub-fund in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises al the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditors
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund for the Financial Satements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal
control as the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for assessing
the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund either intend
to liquidate the Sub-fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Sub-fund's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's and the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Subfund's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Sub-fund to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG LLP

30 April 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Value Partners Limited (the “Company”), which are set out on pages 5 to 42, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, comprising material accounting policy and other explanatory information.
Our Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liahility to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In
addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with
the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on Matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and

Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 April 2025
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KPMGLLP

P.O. Box 493
SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY 1-1106

Cayman Idands
Tel +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164

Web  www.kpmg.com/ky
Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JA-VP China New Century Fund (the “ Sub-fund”), a sub-fund of
Value Partners Intelligent Funds, set out on pages 7 to 34, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities
and investment schedule as at 31 December 2023, the statement of operations, the statement of changes in net
assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of the Sub-
fund as at 31 December 2023, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) issued by the Hong
Kong Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) . Our responsihilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Sub-fund in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises al the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditors
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund for the Financial Satements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal
control as the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for assessing
the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund either intend
to liquidate the Sub-fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Sub-fund's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's and the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors
’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Sub-fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG LLP

26 April 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Value Partners Limited (the “Company”), which are set out on pages 5 to 43, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, comprising material accounting policy and other explanatory information.
Our Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

(Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on Matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and

Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 April 2024
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